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Introduction
o f

by

Reporting a profit before taxes of €9.8 billion, the
Volksbanken Raiffeisenbanken Cooperative Finan-
cial Network remains one of the most profitable
banking groups in Europe. A sharp rise in the volume
of customer business enabled the network to main-
tain net interest income at virtually the prior-year
level, while net fee and commission income actually
increased.

Although persistently low interest rates and the rise
in costs driven by regulatory requirements will have
an adverse impact on financial performance going
forward, the Cooperative Financial Network can
tackle the challenges and any opportunities that
arise in the market from a position of competitive
strength. It is also supported in this by its close ties to
business and society — as reflected in its 18.3 million-
strong membership — and a sound level of equity,
which has risen again to €93.0 billion.

The cooperative banks’ network of branches, which
is comprehensive even by European standards,
means that they are standing by their promise of
remaining close to their customers. In the digital
age, however, customer focus also includes digital
channels, where the cooperative banking group is
currently making substantial investments. Having
the right mix of these distribution channels is a
major factor in future success. The cornerstone of
the entire customer/bank relationship remains the
cooperative bank branch. Even in an omnichannel
environment, the branch — with its highly qualified
specialist advisors — will continue to provide the cru-
cial edge over a business model based primarily on
technology.
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the Board

Managing Directors

The interest-rate situation remains one of the big-
gest challenges in Europe. In view of the Brexit vote
and the resulting uncertainties, there is growing
concern that the European Central Bank will persist
with its disastrous policy of negative interest rates.
The measurable economic benefits of negative in-
terest rates are minimal at most. However, the dam-
age caused by the policy of extremely low interest
rates is considerable, especially for personal pension
products but also for the long-term development of
the financial sector as a whole.

Moreover, the rising tide of regulation is not making
relationships between customers and their banks
any easier. Even politicians now recognize the grow-
ing burden that regulatory requirements represent,
particularly for small and medium-sized banks.
Nonetheless, we will continue with our joint lobby-
ing activities in pursuit of the principle of propor-
tionality. More subsidiarity is also required in this
context. The cooperative model, with its regional
roots and banks that determine their own business
policies, is proof positive of the success with which
individual responsibility and overarching coopera-
tion can be combined for the benefit of business.

Uwe Frohlich
Gerhard Hofmann
Dr. Andreas Martin
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scheme in 2016 at 0.04 percent of the assessment
basis for those institutions that are also members of
the BVR-ISG protection scheme in order to prevent
these institutions incurring a double charge. For the
two other member institutions, the contribution
rate was set at 0.088 percent of the assessment ba-
sis or 2.2 times the basic contribution. Further reso-
lutions concerning contributions were included on
the agenda for the general meeting of the BVR's
members to be held on June 10, 2016 as part of the
approval required for the new BVR-ISG contribution
rules.

Following the successful implementation of the
EinSiG in mid-2015 with the creation of the dual
scheme, the BVR protection scheme is faced with
new tasks in 2016 in connection with implementing
requirements to prepare recovery plans within the
meaning of sections 12 to 20 of the German Bank
Recovery and Resolution Act (SAG). It is also likely
that, following on from initial discussions in 2015,
new challenges will arise as a result of the indirect
and sectoral supervision responsibilities of the ECB,
as demonstrated for example by the ECB's public
consultation on institutional protection schemes
initiated in the first quarter of 2016. The BVR pro-
tection scheme expects yet more issues to emerge
in this regard, involving national and international
institutions such as the ECB, the German Federal
Agency for Financial Market Stabilization (FMSA),
the European Single Resolution Board (SRB), and the
European Commission.

Tools and methods
for identifying and
measuring risk

The framework concept for earnings and risk man-
agement in conjunction with the concepts for
VR-Control have provided the cooperative prima-
ry institutions with a system that ensures the con-
sistent measurement of market risk and credit risk
across the entire business of each institution. In line
with their individual business and risk strategies and
in accordance with regulatory requirements such as
the Minimum Requirements for Risk Management
(MaRisk), the local cooperative banks choose which
of the available methods to use.
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A historical simulation is used to calculate market
risk. Credit risk from the customer lending business is
determined using a variant of the Credit Suisse model
(Credit Risk+), which focuses on industries as the main
risk drivers and has value-at-risk (VaR) as the main
indicator. Besides calculating the VaR, the banks can
develop stress scenarios for the specified risks.

An integrated approach is available to the institu-
tions for measuring credit risk in own-account in-
vesting activities. It takes full account of the securi-
ties' risk drivers by simulating spread risk, migration
risk, and credit risk in the securities portfolio. Fur-
thermore, the risk arising from securities of the is-
suers in the Cooperative Financial Network is deter-
mined using simplified spread shifts. The end result
is that the bank receives an expected portfolio value
and a corresponding risk value in the form of an un-
expected loss. For a periodic management analysis,
expected and unexpected fair value gains and losses
can also be determined. In addition, it is possible to
calculate stress scenarios. The portfolio model and
its parameters are regularly refined and validated by
the relevant unit at parclT GmbH.

The banking regulator is increasingly focused on
banks' inhouse assessment of their own risk-bearing
capacity for the bank as a whole. With the MaRisk,
the regulator specifically deals with the calculation
of risk coverage potential and the risk profiles in the
banks' different approaches. The cooperative insti-
tutions also conduct numerous stress tests as part of
the risk-bearing-capacity calculation.
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Risk capital ma

As legally independent companies, the coopera-
tive institutions are responsible for their own cap-
ital management. Therefore, they manage their
risk-bearing capacity in compliance with the MaRisk
and to fit in with their business strategy.

The BVR protection scheme supports the consistent
use of tools for measuring and managing risk capi-
tal. The risk-bearing-capacity calculation carried out
by each of the institutions forms the basis for the
management of risk capital. According to the data
collected by the BVR protection scheme, the going
concern approach is the predominant approach used
by the banks. The main risks are interest rate risk
and credit risk. The former is generally determined
by simulating the effects of interest rate scenarios
on a bank's planned net interest income, whereas
portfolio models are used to determine credit risk.
Pillar 2 risk-bearing capacity is satisfied in the form
of its utilization by existing capital buffers, even in
the conservative approaches used by the banks. The
protection scheme analyzes risk-bearing capacity
once a year and aggregates the main results. These
are then made available to the banks for informa-
tion purposes. Under the new German Financial and
Risk-Bearing-Capacity Information Regulation (Fi-
naRisikoV), this process will be extended to cover all
institutions from 2016.

Together with the primary banks, central institu-
tions, associations, and computing centers, a con-
cept for the bank-wide allocation of risk capital on
the basis of a statement of assets and liabilities has
been developed. The method underlying this con-
cept is the Markowitz approach to creating efficient
portfolios. By implementing the concept, each bank
is able to use the strategic risk categories it has se-
lected to carry out an allocation process from an
efficiency perspective and to calculate possible al-
locations.

The Cooperative Financial Network provides a com-
prehensive overview of its financial position and
financial performance by preparing annual consol-
idated financial statements. These statements in-
clude a group-level presentation of key figures such
as equity, the Tier 1 capital ratio, and the total cap-
ital ratio.
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Capital adequacy

The consolidated capital ratios for 2015 were cal-
culated using the extended aggregated calculation
pursuant to article 49 (3) CRR in conjunction with
article 113 (7) CRR.

On January 2, 2014, BaFin permitted the institutions
in the Cooperative Financial Network that are affili-
ated with the BVR protection scheme to not deduct
investments within the Cooperative Financial Net-
work when calculating their capital ratios, as pro-
vided for in article 49 (3) CRR. This waiver of the re-
quirement to deduct long-term equity investments
was granted, among other reasons, because mul-
tiple application of own funds between the mem-
bers of the institutional protection scheme has been
eliminated.

The Cooperative Financial Network's regulatory to-
tal capital ratio was 15.8 percent as at December 31,
2015 (December 31, 2014: 15.1 percent). Overall, reg-
ulatory own funds increased by €6.1 billion to €87.6
billion. The increase was largely attributable to the
retention of profits.

The Tier 1 capital ratio improved significantly to 12.4
percent (December 31, 2014: 11.5 percent). For in-
formation only, the material Tier 1 capital ratio, i.e.
including the reserves pursuant to section 340f HGB,
was 14.8 percent (December 31, 2014: 13.8 percent).
The Cooperative Financial Network's capital is pre-
dominantly held by the primary institutions.

The total risk exposure as at December 31, 2015
amounted to €556.0 billion (December 31, 2014:
€541.4 billion). The resulting own funds require-
ments amounted to €44.5 billion as at December 31,
2015 (December 31, 2014: €43.3 billion).

The protection scheme analyzes the regulatory cap-
ital ratios of each member bank. The chart on pages
38/39 shows the distribution of total capital ratios in
the Cooperative Financial Network as at the report-
ing date of December 31, 2015 and as at December
31, 2014. It highlights the continuing healthy level
of capital adequacy of the individual banks. The
unweighted average for the total capital ratio as at
December 31, 2015 was unchanged year on year at
19.0 percent.
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The Cooperative Financial Network has healthy capi-
tal adequacy thanks to equity of €93 billion (Decem-
ber 31, 2014: 86.5 billion). It has continually boost-
ed its level of capital in recent years by retaining
profit. This substantiates the Cooperative Financial
Network's sustainable business model with its broad
diversification of sources of risk and income.

The leverage ratio, which is determined inde-
pendently of risk, was calculated for the first time
at the level of the institutional protection scheme
(BVR protection scheme/BVR-ISG) as at December 31,
2015. The resulting figure of 6.0 percent (minimum
requirement of 3.0 percent) also demonstrates the
above-average capital adequacy within the Cooper-
ative Financial Network. In the calculation conduct-
ed on a material basis, i.e. including the reserves in
accordance with section 340f HGB and taking into
account full application of the relevant CRR provi-
sions, the leverage ratio was 6.9 percent.
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the most important risk category giv-
en the cooperative banks' high volume of custom-
er lending business. The cooperative banks manage
their credit risk efficiently and sustainably using ex-
tensive, high-quality methods of risk measurement.
So that they can assess the creditworthiness of indi-
vidual borrowers, the cooperative banks have access
to a rating system that is tailored to their require-
ments. The system was developed by the BVR to-
gether with its partners in the Cooperative Financial
Network and satisfies the regulatory requirements.
Credit risk at portfolio level is measured using val-
ue-at-risk methods along with structural analysis of
credit ratings, size categories, proportion of unse-
cured lending, and sectoral concentrations.

The Cooperative Financial Network's strategy focus-
es on the profit-oriented assumption of risk, while
taking its level of equity into consideration and
pursuing a cautious lending policy. The cooperative
banks are conservative in their lending decisions,
with knowledge of the customer and borrowers'
capacity to meet their obligations playing a central
role. Overall, the Cooperative Financial Network's
customer lending business has a granular credit
structure and a high proportion of mortgages. The
granularity and extensive regional diversification of
the Cooperative Financial Network's business activi-
ties limit the formation of risk clusters.

The Cooperative Financial Network registered fur-
ther significant growth in its lending business in
2015. Lending to retail and corporate customers saw
a substantial increase of 4.5 percent compared with
2014. A key factor here was again the rise in home
loans and loans to businesses. The growth in corpo-
rate banking was predominantly driven by lending
to companies in the services, energy, and mining
sectors. Because of their regional roots, the local co-
operative banks have established a strong foothold
in the renewable energies market and provide finan-
cial support to companies in relation to projects for
increased energy efficiency and for power genera-
tion from renewable sources.

Long-term home finance was again a key growth
driver in the retail customer business. Consumer

market
risk
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home finance lending by the cooperative banks
benefited from the favorable economic conditions.
However, residential real estate prices in Germany
also continued to go up in 2015. Price rises were par-
ticularly high in conurbations, although more mod-
est when considered across the board. In the majori-
ty of towns, cities, and rural areas, prices were in line
with trends in income and rents.

To help the member institutions monitor the region-
al markets, the BVR teamed up with vdp Research
GmbH to develop a concept for measuring market
volatility in individual postal code areas: BVR re-
al-estate market monitoring. The measurements
from BVR real-estate market monitoring provide
additional regional information to complement the
German Banking Industry Committee's market vol-
atility concept. This enables the cooperative banks
to determine the geographical areas forming their
relevant markets and better comply with regulatory
requirements.

Allowances for losses on loans and advances de-
creased in 2015 by 75.3 percent to €74 million. These
allowances remained low, equating to a ratio of 0.01
percent of the total lending volume. In summary, the
cooperative banks operate a healthy lending busi-
ness overall.

The Cooperative Financial Network's exposures in
respect of bonds from public-sector borrowers in
countries particularly affected by the sovereign debt
crisis remained at a manageable level, as was the
case in previous years. The total carrying amount of
these bonds came to €13.6 billion as at December 31,
2015 (December 31, 2014: €13.9 billion).
Market risk

Interest-rate risk has a significant influence on the
banks' financial performance. Despite low interest
rates in 2015, the Cooperative Financial Network's
net interest income remained largely steady. As in
prior years, the largest proportion of net interest in-
come was generated from the net interest margin
contribution in the customer business. Given the
persistently low level of interest rates and growing
competition for deposits, the banks expect interest
margins to be narrower in the future. Moreover, a
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reversal of interest rates in financial markets poses
certain risks because the funding costs of the loans
extended in the current environment of low interest
rates will go up in the event of an interest rate hike.

Along with credit risk, interest-rate risk plays an
important role for most of the cooperative banks.
The banks could face huge challenges if either the
current low level of interest rates continues or there
is a rapid and significant rise in interest rates. Su-
pervisory authorities are factoring this problem into
appropriate regulatory activities. For example, in
April of this year the Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision published its new 'Interest rate risk in
the banking book' standard, which will come into
force in 2018. The new EBA guidelines on manag-
ing interest rate risk in the banking book have been
available since 2015 and came into effect at the be-
ginning of 2016. However, specific details still need
to be published by the German supervisor during
the course of this year. One aspect common to both
the Basel standard and the EBA guidelines is that, al-
though they continue to provide for the modeling of
interest rate risk in the banking book in Pillar 2, they
place greater emphasis on the quality and consisten-
cy of the management of interest rate risk in insti-
tutions. If the internal management does not satisfy
the requirements of supervisors, they can require an
institution to use a standard model as described in
the new Basel standard.

The protection scheme monitors the appropriate-
ness of the member institutions' level of interest
rate risk, in particular by using simulations to calcu-
late net interest income.

Following the implementation of the new Basel 'In-
terest rate risk in the banking book' standard, the
regulatory test criterion will also be determined on
the basis of six interest rate shock scenarios instead
of the previous two scenarios. It will play a key role
in determining the Supervisory Review and Evalua-
tion Process (SREP) supplement for interest rate risk
in the banking book.
Liquidity risk

As in previous years, the Cooperative Financial Net-
work has a reliable liquidity structure that has al-
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ways proved crisis-resistant so far. The loan to de-
posit ratio of the Cooperative Financial Network is
95 percent. The basis for this lies in the diversifying,
risk-mitigating effect created by the stable business
structure of the banks, which tends to be divided
into small units, and, in particular, in the institutions'
traditional method of obtaining funding through
customer deposits. Customers therefore recognize
and reward the effectiveness of the institutional
protection provided by the BVR protection scheme,
which particularly aims to safeguard deposits but
extends beyond the statutory deposit protection re-
quirements. The cooperative central institutions col-
lect the liquidity surpluses of the individual institu-
tions, enabling cash pooling within the network of
primary banks and specialized service providers. All
member institutions of the BVR protection scheme
complied with the newly introduced requirements
relating to the liquidity coverage ratio (LCR).
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Real economy
banking

The upward trend in economic growth in Germany
continued at the beginning of 2016. According to
official preliminary calculations, GDP growth in the
first quarter (after adjustment for inflation, calen-
dar, and seasonal effects) was strong at 0.7 percent
compared with the previous quarter. The rate of eco-
nomic growth therefore more than doubled com-
pared with the fourth quarter of 2015 (0.3 percent).
However, the pace of expansion in the economy is
expected to slow in the second and third quarters.

Based on the data available in the early summer, the
BVR anticipates that German economic output ad-
justed for inflation will rise by around 1.5 percent
year on year on average in 2016. This forecast is
based on a number of assumptions, including that
the economic recovery in the eurozone will be sus-
tained despite the majority vote by the people of
the United Kingdom to leave the European Union
(Brexit) and that the global economy will gain some
momentum. The price of oil is expected to increase
slightly and it is not anticipated that there will be
any great change in the exchange rate between the
euro and the US dollar.

According to forecasts, the marked expansion in
consumer spending will remain the main growth
driver in 2016. This spending will also continue to
be boosted by the influx of refugees into Germany.
On the other hand, only a small amount of stimulus
is likely to be provided overall by capital investment
and foreign trade. One of the factors that is like-
ly to depress capital expenditure is the uncertainty
about the future relationship between the United
Kingdom and the rest of Europe.

Employment will continue to rise in line with the
sustained economic upturn. The number of people
in work is likely to rise by around 500,000 in 2016 to
43.5 million. Disregarding the increasing inclusion
in the statistics of migrants seeking employment,
the unemployment rate will fall by 0.2 percentage
points to 6.2 percent.

This outlook is subject to considerable impondera-
bles with the overall prospects on a downward tra-
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jectory. Should the Brexit decision give momentum
to centrifugal forces in the European Union there-
by weakening the cohesion between the member
states or should global economic growth turn out
to be weaker than anticipated, this would be likely
to lead to a lower rise in GDP in Germany. However,
it is also conceivable that global uncertainties could
recede faster than predicted, leading to higher
growth in the German economy.

The ECB's monetary policy will probably remain
highly expansionary, at least initially. The bond-buy-
ing program expanded in 2016 will be continued
until at least March 2017. The ECB is only likely to
consider any increase in interest rates after this
program has come to an end. The yields on German
government bonds with long maturities will there-
fore probably remain very low compared with yields
in the past.

Compared with 2015, there will be little change in
the imminent challenges faced by the banking in-
dustry. The outlook therefore remains cautiously
optimistic. We now find ourselves in the eighth year
of a monetary policy that has prescribed low, zero,
and negative interest rates. At the same time, there
is barely any slowdown in the growth of regulato-
ry requirements. This continues to present enor-
mous challenges, particularly for smaller and medi-
um-sized banks. These circumstances will again have
an adverse impact on the financial performance of
the banking industry. The capacity of banks to accu-
mulate capital from their own resources is being im-
paired. In some cases, this could create an incentive
to take excessive risk.

Banks are addressing the growing pressure on in-
come and increasing volume of regulation by ini-
tiating further cost efficiency measures, which are
resulting in the streamlining of processes and prod-
ucts, but are also causing a fall in employee num-
bers and rising merger activity. The banks are also
attempting to hold their position against competi-
tors by aiming for an even greater focus on custom-
er requirements, for example by expanding digital
products and services (omnichannel banking).
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Despite the improvements in capital adequacy over
the last few years and the reduction in leverage, a
rapid rise in interest rates following the long peri-
od of low rates would be a dangerous scenario that
banks need to take extremely seriously. The persis-
tent European sovereign debt crisis and the conse-
quences of the Brexit decision could also have a po-
tentially negative impact.
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Volksbanken
Cooperative
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The outlook for the business performance of the Co-
operative Financial Network in 2016 highlights that
the persistently low interest rates, the rise in costs
caused by regulatory requirements, and the Europe-
an bank levy will continue to have an adverse effect
on the financial performance of the Cooperative Fi-
nancial Network. The future financial performance
of the Cooperative Financial Network could be sub-
ject to risks arising from the general economic cli-
mate. Some European countries still have high levels
of indebtedness and further intervention by the ECB
and/or necessary austerity measures implemented
by the governments concerned could have a nega-
tive impact on economic trends. Overall, the slight
contraction in earnings in 2016 is likely to continue.

Net interest income will decline in all operating
segments, above all as a consequence of the persis-
tently low interest rates. In particular, income from
interest-rate-dependent business models within the
Cooperative Financial Network will continue to come
under increasing pressure. A weakening of econom-
ic growth in the eurozone and/or further monetary
policy measures by the ECB would probably also
have an adverse effect on net interest income.

Allowances for losses on loans and advances
are predicted to rise year on year in 2016. In 2015,
significant reversals of specific loan loss allowanc-
es had a positive impact on overall allowances for
losses on loans and advances and such reversals are
not planned for 2016. The Cooperative Financial
Network expects allowances for losses on loans and
advances to normalize in 2016 and change in line
with the lending portfolio, new business volume,
and the long-term standard risk costs. Allowances
for losses on loans and advances recognized in the
Cooperative Financial Network would be negatively
impacted, in particular, by a sharp economic down-
turn combined with rising sovereign debt in Europe,
the effects of which even Germany would then be
unable to escape.

The Cooperative Financial Network expects net fee
and commission income to be just as good as in
2015. In particular, the positive assessment of the
current capital market environment gives reason to
believe that performance fees in the Retail operat-
ing segment will lead to a rise in fee and commis-

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

HUMAN RESOURCES REPOR
RISK REPORT 29

OUTLOOK 43

iffeisenbanken
Financial

Network

sion income. Any renewed uncertainty in capital and
financial markets could have a negative impact on
confidence among retail and institutional investors,
thereby depressing net fee and commission income.

Net gains under gains and losses on trading ac-
tivities are projected to increase in 2016, boosted
by the customer-driven capital markets business. The
positive income forecast particularly reflects the sys-
tematic implementation of strategic measures, espe-
cially in connection with institutional customers. The
improvement in gains and losses on trading activities
depends on there being no further significant fall in
interest rates and capital markets remaining stable.

Gains and losses on investments are likely to re-
main subdued in 2016 because of the absence of pos-
itive one-off items.

Other gains and losses on valuation of financial in-
struments, which in 2015 were primarily influenced
by positive effects, are expected to deteriorate sig-
nificantly in 2016. The forecast trend in this case also
reflects the reduced potential for reversing impair-
ment losses.

Net income from insurance business is expected to
contract in 2016. One of the main reasons will be an
anticipated decline in the net gains under gains and
losses on investments held by insurance companies.
On the other hand, the targeted increase in market
share could give rise to an extremely strong counter-
vailing effect from growth in premiums. Exceptional
events in financial and capital markets or changes in
underwriting practices may affect the level of net
income earned from insurance business.

Administrative expenses are predicted to rise
moderately again in 2016. This forecast rise reflects
tighter regulatory and statutory provisions and the
expenses in connection with the European bank
levy. Innovation-related expenditure and capital in-
vestment will also go up to safeguard the competi-
tiveness of the Cooperative Financial Network over
the long term. In view of the rising administrative
expenses, one of the strategic aims is to improve the
cost/income ratio by rigorously managing costs and
accelerating growth in the operating business.

The merger of DZ BANK and WGZ BANK in 2016 is
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expected to create not only extensive synergies but
also growth potential and earnings potential, es-
pecially in the Bank operating segment, although
the benefits will only materialize in the medium
term from 2017 onward. The Cooperative Financial
Network has a compelling business model, support-
ed by sound risk-bearing capacity. The strong sup-
port from members and customers, combined with
strong capital ratios, enables the Cooperative Finan-
cial Network to seize opportunities for growth that
present themselves and thus to successfully maintain
its outstanding market position in a challenging reg-
ulatory environment.
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Income statement for the period
January 1 to December 31, 2015

s S S =2
c
- .- L= 2 ¢
o s E s E Zg
= o~ W o~ W O —
Net interest income 2. 20,021 20,047 -0.1
Interest income and current income and expense 28,792 30,657 -6.1
Interest expense -8,771 -10,610 -17.3
Allowances for losses on loans and advances 3. -74 -299 —75.3
Net fee and commission income 4. 5,798 5,467 6.1
Fee and commission income 7,292 6,793 7.3
Fee and commission expense -1,494 -1,326 12.7
Gains and losses on trading activities 5. 607 752 -19.3
Gains and losses on investments 6. -561 148 >100.0
Other gains and losses on valuation 7. 363 435 -16.6
of financial instruments
Premiums earned 8. 14,418 13,927 3.5
Gains and losses on investments held by insurance 9. 3,013 4,388 —3i1.3
companies and other insurance company gains and
losses
Insurance benefit payments 10. -14,664 -15,264 -3.9
Insurance business operating expenses 11. -1,774 -1,770 0.2
Administrative expenses 12. -17,234 -16,895 2.0
Other net operating expense/income 13. -126 -281 -55.2
Profit before taxes 9,787 10,655 -8.1
Income taxes 14. -2,820 -2,848 -1.0
Net profit 6,967 7,807 -10.8
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Cooperative Financial Network 6,761 7,555 -10.5

w

Non-controlling interests 206 252 -18.
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Statement of comprehensive

income for the period
January 1 to December

31,

STATEMENTS

2 0

o= < -
2 2 w =
p— — o @
= < = = ¢
— E e C o
o o = S
o~ W o~ W O —
Net profit 6,967 7.807 -10.8
Other comprehensive income/loss 854 -513 >100.0
Items that may be reclassified to the income state- 219 956 -77.1
ment
Gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets 103 1,397 -92.6
Gains and losses on cash flow hedges 14 =311 >100.0
Exchange differences on currency translation of foreign 44 12 >100.0
operations
Gains and losses on hedges of net investments in -24 -16 50.0
foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive income/loss of joint 17 27 -37.0
ventures and associates accounted for using the equity
method
Income taxes relating to components of other 65 -433 >100.0
comprehensive income/loss
Items that cannot be reclassified to the 635 -1,469 >100.0
income statement
Gains and losses arising on remeasurements of defined 905 -2,092 >100.0
benefit plans
Share of other comprehensive income/loss of joint -1 —4 -75.0
ventures and associates accounted for using the equity
method
Income taxes relating to components of other -269 627 >100.0
comprehensive income/loss
Total comprehensive income 7,821 7,294 7.2
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Cooperative Financial Network 7,589 6,950 9.2
Non-controlling interests 232 344 -32.6
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Balance sheet as at
December 31, 2015
[Te) <
o o
o~ o~
. - o N o ’:
o — ©O — O o =
= mE m£ o O
[} R - = z
— [CR = (SR = © o
o (<5 (<5 = a
Assets = o w o w v =
Cash and cash equivalents 15. 20,536 15,656 31.2
Loans and advances to banks 16. 32,988 38,293 -13.9
Loans and advances to customers 16. 700,608 670,683 4.5
Allowances for losses on loans and advances 17. -7,631 -8,519 -10.4
Derivatives used for hedging 18. 1,050 1,099 -4.5
(positive fair values)
Financial assets held for trading 19. 53,570 61,181 -12.4
Investments 20. 249,960 249,219 0.3
Investments held by insurance companies 21. 82,766 77,545 6.7
Property, plant and equipment, and investment 22. 11,168 11,429 -2.3
property
Income tax assets 23. 3,772 4,484 -15.9
Other assets 24. 13,732 14,690 -6.5
Total assets 1,162,519 1,135,760 2.4
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Deposits from banks 25. 99,505 103,526 -3.9
Deposits from customers 25. 739,218 713,485 3.6
Debt certificates including bonds 26. 70,248 66,981 4.9
Derivatives used for hedging 18. 9,453 10,423 -9.3

(negative fair values)
Financial liabilities held for trading 27. 45,397 52,760 -14.0
Provisions 28. 12,563 13,661 -8.0
Insurance liabilities 29. 78,929 74,670 5.7
Income tax liabilities 23. 1,263 1,198 5.4
Other liabilities 30. 7,569 7,819 -3.2
Subordinated capital 31. 5,367 4,736 13.3
Equity 93,007 86,501 7.5
Equity of the Cooperative 90,088 83,153 8.3
Financial Network

Subscribed capital 10,922 10,762 1.5
Capital reserves 784 754 4.0
Retained earnings 70,122 62,807 11.6
Revaluation reserve 1,444 1,258 14.8
Cash flow hedge reserve -7 -15 -53.3
Currency translation reserve 62 32 93.8
Unappropriated earnings 6,761 7,555 -10.5
Non-controlling interests 2,919 3,348 -12.8
Total equity and liabilities 1,162,519 1,135,760 2.4
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Equity as at 10,424 708 64,683 435 4 12 76,266 3,120 79,386
Jan. 1, 2014
Net profit - - 7,555 - - - 7,555 252 7,807
Other comprehensive - - —1,441 835 -19 20 -605 92 -513
income/loss
Total comprehensive - - 6,114 835 -19 20 6,950 344 7,294
income
Issue and repayment 338 46 - - - - 384 144 528
of equity
Changes in the scope - - 46 -12 - - 34 1 35
of consolidation
Acquisition/disposal - - 101 - - - 101 -198 -97
of non-controlling
interests
Dividends paid - - =582 - - - -582 -63 —-645
Equity as at 10,762 754 70,362 1,258 -15 32 83,153 3,348 86,501
Dec. 31, 2014
Net profit - - 6,761 - - - 6,761 206 6,967
Other comprehensive — — 627 163 8 30 828 26 854
income/loss
Total comprehensive - - 17,388 163 8 30 7,589 232 7,821
income
Issue and repayment 160 30 = = = = 190 -248 -58
of equity
Changes in the scope - - 4 - - - 4 1 5
of consolidation
Acquisition/disposal - -  -304 23 - - -281 -351 -632
of non-controlling
interests
Dividends paid = - =567 = = -  -567 -63 -630
Equity as at 10,922 784 76,883 1,444 -7 62 90,088 2,919 93,007

Dec. 31, 2015
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Breakdown of subscribed capital o w o w U =
Cooperative shares 10,673 10,271 3.9
Share capital 144 176 -18.2
Capital of silent partners 105 315 -66.7
Total 10,922 10,762 1.5
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Statement of cash flows
= ==
2 2
w = < =
— £ — E
o o
o~ W o~ W
Net profit 6,967 7,807
Non-cash items included in net profit and
reconciliation to cash flows from operating activities
Depreciation, impairment losses, and reversal of impairment losses 451 -1,676
on assets, and other non-cash changes in
financial assets and liabilities
Non-cash changes in provisions -1,102 2,305
Changes in insurance liabilities 7,262 9,977
Other non-cash income and expenses 366 981
Gains and losses on the disposal of assets and liabilities 476 -152
Other adjustments (net) -18,213 -18,746
Subtotal -3,793 496
Cash changes in assets and liabilities
arising from operating activities
Loans and advances to banks and customers -26,402 -27,134
Other assets from operating activities 350 1,075
Derivatives used for hedging (positive and negative fair values) -835 434
Financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading -748 4,812
Deposits from banks and customers 21,475 26,543
Debt certificates including bonds 3,132 -909
Other liabilities from operating activities -3,145 -2,676
Interest, dividends and operating lease payments received 31,997 29,063
Interest paid -7,153 -8,333
Income taxes paid -1,897 -2,314
Cash flows from operating activities 12,981 21,057
Proceeds from the sale of investments 6,742 13,551
Proceeds from the sale of investments held by insurance companies 18,764 24,670
Proceeds from the sale of intangible non-current assets 159 18
Payments for acquisitions of investments -8,625 -23,490
Payments for acquisitions of investments held by insurance companies -23,673 -32,110
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Payments for the acquisition of intangible non-current assets -174 -
Net payments for acquisitions of property, plant and equipment, and -1,433 -1,144
investment property (excl. assets subject to operating leases)
Changes in the scope of consolidation -13 =21
Cash flows from investing activities -8,253 -18,526
Proceeds from capital increases 190 384
Proceeds from capital increases by non-controlling interests - 144
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Cooperative Financial Network -567 -582
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests -63 -63
Other payments to non-controlling interests -2438 -
Net change in cash and cash equivalents from other financing 840 -2,738
activities (including subordinated capital)
Cash flows from financing activities 152 -2,855
Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1 15,656 15,980
Cash flows from operating activities 12,981 21,057
Cash flows from investing activities -8,253 -18,526
Cash flows from financing activities 152 -2,855
Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31 20,536 15,656

The consolidated statement of cash flows shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents during the fi-
nancial year. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances with central banks and other
government institutions as well as treasury bills and non-interest bearing treasury notes. The cash and cash
equivalents do not include any financial investments with a maturity of more than three months at the date
of acquisition. Changes in cash and cash equivalents are broken down into operating, investing and financ-

ing activities.

Cash flows from operating activities comprise cash flows mainly arising in connection with the revenue-gen-
erating activities of the Cooperative Financial Network or other activities that cannot be classified as invest-
ing or financing activities. Cash flows related to the acquisition and sale of non-current assets are allocated
to investing activities. Cash flows from financing activities include cash flows arising from transactions with

equity owners and from other borrowings to finance business activities.
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A Significant

Basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Volks-
banken Raiffeisenbanken Cooperative Financial
Network prepared by the Federal Association of
German Cooperative Banks (BVR) are based on the
regulations applicable to publicly traded companies.
The BVR is under no legal obligation to prepare such
consolidated financial statements. The cooperative
shares and share capital of the local cooperative
banks are held by their members. The local coopera-
tive banks own the share capital of the central insti-
tutions either directly or through intermediate hold-
ing companies. The Cooperative Financial Network
does not qualify as a corporate group as defined
by the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), the German Commercial Code (HGB) or the
German Stock Corporation Act (AktG).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared solely for informational purposes and to
present the business development and performance
of the Cooperative Financial Network, which is
treated as a single economic entity in terms of its
risks and strategies. These consolidated financial
statements are not a substitute for analysis of the
consolidated entities' financial statements.

The accounting policies applied in these consolidat-
ed financial statements are generally based on the
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The underlying data presented in these consolidat-
ed financial statements is provided by the separate
and consolidated financial statements of the enti-
ties in the Cooperative Financial Network and also
includes data from supplementary surveys of the
local cooperative banks. The consolidated financial
statements of DZ BANK and of WGZ BANK includ-
ed in these consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the basis of IFRS as adopted by
the European Union.
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As part of the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements, the financial statements of
the local cooperative banks, of the BVR protection
scheme (BVR-SE) and of BVR Institutssicherung
GmbH (BVR-ISG), all of which are included and have
been prepared in accordance with the German Com-
mercial Code, have been brought into line with
IFRSs. Thus, using a simplified approach, assets, lia-
bilities, equity, income and expenses are reconciled
to the carrying amounts that would have resulted
from consistent application of IFRS.

As in the previous years, certain assumptions and
simplifications have been used to prepare these con-
solidated financial statements. These assumptions
and simplifications have been made using tried-and-
tested methods and have been properly verified.
These assumptions and simplifications have been
used to eliminate intra-network balances, transac-
tions, income and expenses in a way that reflects
the unique structure of the Cooperative Financial
Network.

The financial year corresponds to the calendar year.
In the interest of clarity, some items on the face of
the balance sheet and the income statement have
been aggregated and are explained by additional
disclosures. Unless stated otherwise, all amounts are
shown in millions of euros (€ million). All figures are
rounded to the nearest whole number. This may re-
sult in very small discrepancies in the calculation of
totals and percentages in these consolidated finan-
cial statements.
Scope of consolidation

The consolidated entities included in these consoli-
dated financial statements are 1,018 primary banks
(2014: 1,036), the DZ BANK Group, the WGZ BANK
Group, Minchener Hypothekenbank eG (MHB), the
BVR protection scheme, and BVR Institutssicherung
GmbH included for the first time in the financial
year under review. The consolidated primary banks
include Deutsche Apotheker- und Arztebank eG, the
Sparda banks, the PSD banks, and specialized insti-
tutions such as BAG Bankaktiengesellschaft.
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Dr. Klaus Heubeck) are used to estimate average life
expectancy. The discount rate used to discount fu-
ture payment obligations is an appropriate market
interest rate as at the reporting date for high-qual-
ity fixed-income corporate bonds with a maturity
equivalent to that of the defined benefit obliga-
tions. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experi-
ence adjustments and changes in actuarial assump-
tions regarding defined benefit obligations as well
as gains and losses on remeasurements of plan as-
sets are recognized as other comprehensive income
in the financial year in which they occur.

Other provisions are measured based on the best
estimate of the present value of their anticipated
utilization, taking into account risks and uncertain-
ties associated with the issues concerned as well as
future events. The outflows of funds actually ma-
terializing in future may differ from the estimated
utilization of provisions.

Provisions for loans and advances factor in the usual
sector-specific level of uncertainty about amounts
and maturity dates.

Provisions relating to building society operations
are recognized to cover the payment of any bonuses
that may have been agreed in the terms and con-
ditions of home savings contracts. These bonuses
may take the form of a reimbursement of some of
the sales charges or interest bonuses on deposits.
The bonuses constitute independent payment ob-
ligations and must be measured and recognized in
accordance with IAS 37. In order to measure these
obligations, building society simulations (collective
simulations) are used to forecast building socie-
ty customers’ future behavior. Uncertainty in con-
nection with the measurement of these provisions
is linked to assumptions to be made about future
customer behavior, which take account of various
scenarios and measures. Material inputs for the col-
lective simulations are the rate of mortgage loans
not drawn down and the pattern of customer can-
cellations.

Provisions are recognized for risks arising from on-
going legal disputes and cover the possible result-
ing losses. Such provisions are recognized when it is
more likely than not that a legal dispute will result in
a payment obligation for an entity in the BVR. Any
concentration risk owing to similarities between in-
dividual cases is taken into consideration.
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Subordinated capital
Subordinated capital comprises all debt instruments
in bearer or registered form that, in the event of
insolvency or liquidation, are repaid only after set-
tlement of all unsubordinated liabilities but before
distribution to shareholders of any proceeds from
the insolvency or liquidation.

Subordinated capital comprises subordinated liabil-
ities and profit-sharing rights as well as regulatory
core capital not included in equity, which is recog-
nized as hybrid capital. The share capital repayable
on demand comprises non-controlling interests in
partnerships controlled by companies in the Coop-
erative Financial Network. These non-controlling in-
terests must be classified as subordinated.

Subordinated capital and gains and losses on these
certificates are measured and recognized in the
same way as deposits from banks and customers.

Equity

Equity represents the residual value of the Cooper-
ative Financial Network's assets minus its liabilities.
Cooperative shares of the independent local cooper-
ative banks and capital of silent partners are treat-
ed as economic equity in the consolidated financial
statements and are recognized as equity. Equity thus
comprises subscribed capital — consisting of coopera-
tive shares or share capital and capital of silent part-
ners — plus capital reserves of the local cooperative
banks. It also includes equity earned by the Cooper-
ative Financial Network, the reserve resulting from
the fair value measurement of available-for-sale fi-
nancial assets (revaluation reserve), the cash flow
hedge reserve, the currency translation reserve, and
the non-controlling interests in the equity of consol-
idated subsidiaries.

Trust activities

Trust activities are defined as business transacted on
one's own behalf for a third-party account. Assets
and liabilities held as part of trust activities do not
satisfy the criteria for recognition on the balance
sheet.

Income and expenses arising from trust activities are
recognized as fee and commission income or as fee
and commission expenses. Income and expenses re-
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sulting from the passing-through and administration
of trust loans are netted and are included in the fee
and commission income earned from lending and
trust activities.
Insurance business
Insurance business in the Cooperative Financial Net-
work is generally reported under specific insurance

items on the face of the income statement and bal-
ance sheet.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities held or en-
tered into in connection with insurance operations
are generally accounted for and measured in accord-
ance with IAS 39. They are reported in the invest-
ments held by insurance companies, or in the other
assets and other liabilities of insurance companies.
Impairment losses on financial assets recognized
under the investments and the other assets of in-
surance companies are directly deducted from the
assets' carrying amounts.

In addition to financial instruments within the scope
of 1AS 39, certain financial assets and financial li-
abilities are held as part of the insurance business
and, as required by IFRS 4.25(c), are recognized and
measured in accordance with the provisions of the
HGB and other German accounting standards appli-
cable to insurance companies. These financial assets
and financial liabilities include deposits with ceding
insurers, deposits received from reinsurers, receiva-
bles and payables arising out of direct insurance op-
erations, and assets related to unit-linked contracts.

Insurance liabilities

Insurance companies are permitted to continue
applying existing accounting policies to certain in-
surance-specific items during a transition period.
Insurance liabilities are therefore recognized and
measured in accordance with the provisions of the
HGB and other German accounting standards appli-
cable to insurance companies. Insurance liabilities
are shown before the deduction of the share of re-
insurers, which is reported as an asset.
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Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership
of an asset are transferred from the lessor to the les-
see. If a lease is classified as a finance lease, a receiv-
able due from the lessee must be recognized. The re-
ceivable is measured at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease at the inception of the lease.
Lease payments are apportioned into payment of in-
terest and repayment of principal. Revenue is recog-
nized as interest income on an accrual basis.
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B Selected disclosures
other

Iinterests 1In

Investments in subsidiaries
Share in the business operations of the Cooper-
ative Financial Network attributable to non-con-
trolling interests

DZ BANK AG Deutsche Zentral-Genossenschaftsbank
(DZ BANK) and Westdeutsche Genossenschafts-Zen-
tralbank AG (WGZ BANK) are included in the consol-
idated financial statements together with their re-
spective subsidiaries as a subgroup. In this context,
DZ BANK and WGZ BANK are focused on their clients
and owners, the local cooperative banks, as central
bank, commercial bank and holding company. The
objective of this focus is to sustainably expand the
position of the Cooperative Financial Network as
one of the leading universal financial service groups.

The shares of DZ BANK, with its headquarters in
Frankfurt/Main, Germany, are held by the prima-
ry banks and by MHB, with ownership interests
amounting to 86.2 percent (2014: 85.4 percent). An-
other 6.7 percent (2014: 6.7 percent) of the shares
are held by WGZ BANK. The remaining shares of 7.1
percent (2014: 7.9 percent) are attributable to share-
holders that are not part of the Cooperative Finan-
cial Network. The pro-rata share in net profit attrib-
utable to non-controlling interests amounts to €191
million (2014: €241 million). The carrying amount of
non-controlling interests amounts to €2,836 million
(2014: €3,279 million). In the financial year under re-
view, the dividend payment made to non-controlling
interests amounts to €62 million (2014: €62 million).

The shares of WGZ BANK, with its headquarters in
Dusseldorf, Germany, are held by the primary banks
with ownership interests amounting to 98.1 per-
cent (2014: 98.1 percent). The remaining shares of
1.9 percent (2014: 1.9 percent) are attributable to
shareholders that are not part of the Cooperative
Financial Network. The pro-rata share in net profit
attributable to non-controlling interests amounts to
€15 million (2014: €11 million). The carrying amount
of non-controlling interests amounts to €83 mil-
lion (2014: €69 million). In the financial year under
review, the dividend payment made to non-con-
trolling interests amounts to €1 million, unchanged
from the prior year.
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entities

Nature and extent of significant restrictions
National regulatory requirements, contractual pro-
visions, and provisions of company law restrict the
ability of the DZ BANK Group companies included in
the consolidated financial statements to transfer as-
sets within the group. Prior-year amounts were ad-
justed as a result of the reassessment of the nature
and extent of significant restrictions. Where restric-
tions can be specifically assigned to individual line
items on the balance sheet, the carrying amounts
of the assets subject to restrictions on the balance
sheet date are shown in the following table:

[Tal <
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Assets 74,732 70,721 5.7
Loans and advances 4,174 4,944 -15.6
to customers
Investments held by 70,552 65,770 7.3
insurance companies
Other assets 6 7 -14.3
Liabilities 119,148 112,392 6.0
Deposits from banks 1,690 1,583 6.8
Deposits from 50,926 48,343 5.3
customers
Provisions 653 580 12.6
Insurance liabilities 65,879 61,886 6.5

Nature of the risks associated with inter:sts in
consolidated structured entities

Risks arising from interests in consolidated struc-
tured entities largely result from loans to fully con-
solidated funds within the DZ BANK Group, some of
which are extended in the form of junior loans.
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Interests in joint
arrangements and
investments in associates

Nature, extent and financial effects of interests
in joint arrangements

The carrying amount of individually immaterial joint
ventures accounted for using the equity method
totaled €564 million as at the balance sheet date
(2014: €615 million).

Aggregated financial information for joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method that individ-
ually are not material:
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Nature, extent and financial effects of interests
in associates
The carrying amount of individually immaterial as-
sociates accounted for using the equity method to-
taled €410 million as at the balance sheet date (2014:
€369 million).

Aggregated financial information for associates ac-
counted for using the equity method that individu-
ally are not material:

oy oy - ey oy -
& & = & & w =
= o o @ = = o v
n — < — = i — < — e ¢
— E — E © 5 — £ — £ © g
o o = o o o = a
o~ W o~ W o — o~ W o~ W o —
Share of profit from 110 95 15.8 Share of profit from 17 21 -19.0
continuing operations continuing operations
Share of other 24 56 —57.1 Share of profit 1 1 -
comprehensive from discontinued
income/loss operations
Pro-rata share of 134 151 —=11.3 Share of other 22 -6 >100.0
total comprehensive comprehensive
income/loss income/loss
Pro-rata share of 40 16 >100.0

total comprehensive
income/loss
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Interests in unconsolidated
structured entities

Structured entities are entities that have been de-

signed so that voting rights or similar rights are not

the dominant factor in deciding who controls the

entity. The Cooperative Financial Network mainly

distinguishes between the following types of in-

terests in unconsolidated structured entities, based

on their design and the related risks; these entities

largely concern companies of the DZ BANK Group:

— Interests in investment funds issued by the
Cooperative Financial Network,

- Interests in investment funds not issued by the
Cooperative Financial Network,

— Interests in securitization vehicles,

— Interests in asset-leasing vehicles

Interests in investment funds issued by the Coop-
erative Financial Network

The interests in the investment funds issued by the
Cooperative Financial Network largely comprise in-
vestment funds issued by entities in the Union In-
vestment Group in accordance with the contractual
form model without voting rights and, to a lesser
extent, those that are structured as a company with
a separate legal personality. Furthermore, the DVB
Bank Group makes subordinated loans available to
fully consolidated funds for the purpose of trans-
port finance. In turn, these funds make subordinat-
ed loans or direct equity investments available to
unconsolidated entities.

The maximum exposure of the investment funds is-
sued and managed by the DZ BANK Group is deter-
mined as a gross value, excluding deduction of avail-
able collateral, and amounts to €10,331 million as
at the reporting date (2014: €11,509 million). These
investment fund assets resulted in losses of €15 mil-
lion (2014: losses of €5 million) as well as income of
€1,636 million (2014: €1,445 million).

Interests in investment funds not issued by the
Cooperative Financial Network

The interests in the investment funds not issued by
the Cooperative Financial Network above all comprise
investment funds managed by entities in the Union
Investment Group within the scope of their own de-
cision-making powers that have been issued by enti-
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ties outside the Cooperative Financial Network and
parts of such investment funds. Their total volume
amounted to €27,269 million (2014: €24,289 mil-
lion). The DZ BANK Group also extends loans to
investment funds in order to generate interest in-
come. In addition, there are investment funds issued
by entities outside the Cooperative Financial Net-
work in connection with unit-linked life insurance
of the R+V Group (R+V) amounting to €7,351 million
(2014: €2,088 million) that, however, do not result
in @ maximum exposure.

The maximum exposure arising from the investment
funds not issued by the DZ BANK Group is deter-
mined as a gross value, excluding deduction of avail-
able collateral, and amounts to €2,095 million as at
the reporting date (2014: €1,816 million). Income
generated from these investment fund assets in the
financial year 2015 amounted to €108 million (2014:
€108 million).

Interests in securitization vehicles

The interests in securitization vehicles are interests
in vehicles where the DZ BANK Group's involvement
goes beyond that of an investor.

The material interests in securitization vehicles com-
prise the two multi-seller ABCP programs: CORAL
and AUTOBAHN. DZ BANK acts as sponsor and pro-
gram agent for both programs. It is also the pro-
gram administrator for AUTOBAHN.

The maximum exposure of the interests in securiti-
zation vehicles in the DZ BANK Group is determined
as a gross value, excluding deduction of available
collateral, and amounts to €3,459 million as at the
reporting date (2014: €3,283 million). Income gener-
ated from these interests in the financial year 2015
amounted to €84 million (2014: €85 million).

Interests in asset-leasing vehicles

The interests in asset-leasing vehicles comprise shares
in limited partnerships and voting rights, other than
the shares in limited partnerships, in partnerships
established by VR LEASING for the purpose of real
estate leasing (asset-leasing vehicles), in which the
asset, and the funding occasionally provided by the
DZ BANK Group, are placed.
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The actual maximum exposure of the interests in
asset-leasing vehicles in the DZ BANK Group is de-
termined as a gross value, excluding deduction of
available collateral, and amounts to €1 million as at
the reporting date. Interest income and current in-
come and expense generated from these interests in
the financial year 2015 amounted to €5 million (2014:
€3 million).
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C Income statement disclosures

1.
Information on operating

[
=
©
e
segments w S
= o m
— (&) o
%) f= =
— el © =~ o _
Financial year 2015 = = © 2 2 £ bt
- © 7] 3] +— O o
€ million o o [ = o u —
Net interest income 2,017 17,260 1,593 = -849 20,021
Allowances for losses on loans and -94 —7 27 — - -74
advances
Net fee and commission income 586 5,911 -193 - -506 5,798
Gains and losses on trading activities 458 189 -19 - =21 607
Gains and losses on investments 110 -611 -53 - -7 -561
Other gains and losses on valuation 7 -6 364 - -2 363
of financial instruments
Premiums earned - - - 14,418 - 14,418
Gains and losses on investments held by - - - 3,132 -119 3,013
insurance companies and other insurance
company gains and losses
Insurance benefit payments - - - -14,664 - -14,664
Insurance business operating expenses = = - —=2,287 513 -1,774
Administrative expenses -1,830 —-15,119 -700 - 415 -17,234
Other net operating expense/income -98 -68 31 26 -17 -126
Profit/loss before taxes 1,156 7,549 1,050 625 -593 9,787

Cost/income ratio (percent) 59.4 66.7 40.6 - - 63.6
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= L © = o _
Financial year 2014 = & © = = < 2
€ million = = -z = o v 2
Net interest income 1,917 17,277 1,552 - -699 20,047
Allowances for losses on loans and -147 -174 9 - 13 -299
advances
Net fee and commission income 576 5,542 -146 - -505 5,467
Gains and losses on trading activities 570 210 -18 - -10 752
Gains and losses on investments 61 54 8 - 25 148
Other gains and losses on valuation -39 12 454 - 8 435
of financial instruments
Premiums earned - - - 13,927 - 13,927
Gains and losses on investments held by - - - 4,481 -93 4,388
insurance companies and other insurance
company gains and losses
Insurance benefit payments - - - -15,264 - -15,264
Insurance business operating expenses = = - -2,284 514 -1,770
Administrative expenses -1,675 -14,880 =735 = 395 -16,895
Other net operating expense/income =167 -196 57 -4 29 -281
Profit/loss before taxes 1,096 7,845 1,181 856 -323 10,655
Cost/income ratio (percent) 57.4 65.0 38.5 - - 60.7
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Definition of operating segments

The Volksbanken Raiffeisenbanken Cooperative Fi-
nancial Network is founded on the underlying prin-
ciple of decentralization. It is based on the local pri-
mary banks, whose business activities are supported
by the two central institutions - DZ BANK and WGZ
BANK - and by specialized service providers within
the cooperative sector. These specialized service pro-
viders are integrated into the central institutions.
The main benefit derived by the primary banks from
their collaboration with these specialized services
providers and the central institutions is that they can
offer a full range of financial products and services.

The Bank operating segment combines the activities
of the Cooperative Financial Network in the corpo-
rate customers, institutional customers and capital
markets businesses. The operating segment focuses
on corporate customers. It essentially comprises DZ
BANK, WGZ BANK, the VR LEASING Group, the DVB
Bank Group, DZ BANK Ireland plc, and WGZ BANK
Ireland plc.

The Retail operating segment covers private bank-
ing and activities relating to asset management. The
segment focuses on retail clients. It mainly includes
primary banks as well as the DZ PRIVATBANK, Team-
Bank AG Nirnberg (TeamBank) and Union Invest-
ment Group.

The Real Estate Finance operating segment en-
compasses the home savings and loan operations,
mortgage banking, and real estate business. The
entities allocated to this operating segment include
Bausparkasse Schwabisch Hall Group (BSH), Deutsche
Genossenschafts-Hypothekenbank AG, WL BANK
AG Westfalische Landschaft Bodenkreditbank, and
MHB.

Insurance operations are reported under the Insur-
ance operating segment. This operating segment
consists solely of R+V.

Other/Consolidation contains the BVR protection
scheme (BVR-SE) as well as BVR Institutssicherung
GmbH (BVR-ISG), whose task is to avert impending
or existing financial difficulties faced by member in-
stitutions by taking preventive action or implement-
ing restructuring measures. This operating segment
also includes intersegment consolidation items.
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Presentation of the disclosures on operating seg-
ments

The information on operating segments presents
the interest income generated by the operating seg-
ments and the associated interest expenses on a net-
ted basis as net interest income.

Intersegment consolidation

The adjustments to the figure for netinterestincome
resulted largely from the consolidation of dividends
paid within the Cooperative Financial Network.

The figure under Other/Consolidation for net fee
and commission income relates specifically to the
fee and commission business transacted between
the primary banks, TeamBank, BSH, and R+V.

The figure under Other/Consolidation for adminis-
trative expenses includes the contributions paid to
BVR-SE and BVR-ISG by member institutions of the
Cooperative Financial Network.

The remaining adjustments are largely attributable
to the consolidation of income and expenses.
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Z 5 5 =
Net interest income = = o ©
N — < = = ©
— £ — £ © 4
o o <= o
o~ W o~ W O —
Interest income and current income and expense 28,792 30,657 -6.1
Interest income from 27,396 29,307 -6.5
Lending and money market business 24,307 25,709 -5.5
of which building society operations 1,031 1,008 2.3
Finance leases 184 232 -20.7
Fixed-income securities 3,646 4,121 -11.5
Other assets -538 -523 2.9
Financial assets with a negative effective interest rate -19 - -
Current income from 1,267 1,224 3.5
Shares and other variable-yield securities 1,023 1,144 -10.6
Investments in subsidiaries and equity investments 264 89 >100.0
Operating leases -20 -9 >100.0
Income/loss from using the equity method for 48 46 4.3
Investment in joint ventures 41 36 13.9
Investments in associates 7 10 -30.0
Income from profit-pooling, profit-transfer and 81 80 1.3
partial profit-transfer agreements
Interest expense -8,771 -10,610 -17.3
Interest expense on -8,506 -9,964 -14.6
Deposits from banks and customers -6,424 -7,882 -18.5
of which: building society operations -820 -773 6.1
Debt certificates including bonds -1,887 -1,825 3.4
Subordinated capital —241 -297 -18.9
Other liabilities 19 40 =525
Financial liabilities with a positive effective 27 - -
interest rate
Other interest expense -265 -646 -59.0
Total 20,021 20,047 -0.1

The interest income from other assets and the interest expense on other liabilities result from gains and
losses on the amortization of fair value changes of the hedged items in portfolio hedges of interest-rate
risk. Owing to the current low level of interest rates in the money markets and capital markets, there may
be a negative effective interest rate for financial assets and a positive effective interest rate for financial
liabilities. In 2014, these effects were shown in net fee and commission income.
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3. 5 5 =
Allowances for losses = = o ©
N — < - = ¥
on loans and advances = = = = © o
o o = o
o~ W o~ W O —
Additions -2,143 -2,467 -13.1
Reversals 1,906 2,092 -8.9
Directly recognized impairment losses -167 -187 -10.7
Recoveries from loans and advances previously impaired 318 296 7.4
Changes in the provisions for loans and advances 12 =27 >100.0
as well as in the liabilities from financial guarantee
contracts
Impairment losses on loans and advances available - -6 100.0
for sale
Total -74 -299 -75.3
0. 5 5 Lz
Net fee and commission income = = o ©
= < = = ¢
— E = 5 C o
o o = o
o~ W o~ W v —
Fee and commission income 7,292 6,793 7.3
Securities business 3,278 2,912 12.6
Asset management 346 283 22.3
Payments processing including card processing 2,398 2,345 2.3
Lending business and trust activities 262 264 -0.8
Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments 181 182 -0.5
Foreign commercial business 134 112 19.6
Building society operations 5 29 -82.8
Other 688 663 3.8
Income from negative effective interest rates for - 3 -100.0
financial liabilities
Fee and commission expense -1,494 -1,326 12.7
Securities business -491 -423 16.1
Asset management -116 =@9 30.3
Payments processing including card processing -284 -286 -0.7
Lending business and trust activities -165 =117 41.0
Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments 51 -1 >100.0
International business -28 -22 27.3
Building society operations -103 -129 -20.2
Other -358 -248 44.4
Expenses from negative effective interest rates for - -1 100.0
financial assets
Total 5,798 5,467 6.1

The income from negative effective interest rates for financial liabilities and the expenses from negative
effective interest rates for financial assets were presented in net interest income in 2015.
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5. S s .z
Gains and losses on trading activities = = o @
n = < = =
— £ — £ ©
o o <= o
o~ W o~ W O —
Gains and losses on trading in financial instruments 287 637 -54.9
Gains and losses on trading in foreign exchange, 135 -74 >100.0
foreign notes and coins, and precious metals
Gains and losses on commodities trading 185 189 -2.1
Total 607 752 -19.3
6. : : Lz
Gains and losses on investments = = o @
n — < — c Y
— E — E © @
o o = o
~ W o~ W v —
Gains and losses on securities -636 83 >100.0
Gains and losses on investments in subsidiaries 75 65 15.4
and equity investments
Total -561 148 >100.0
. 5 5 .z
Other gains and losses on valuation = = o @
= = = ¥
of financial instruments 2 piy= ® =
o o = o
o~ W o~ W o —
Gains and losses from hedge accounting 31 =27 >100,0
Fair value hedges 31 -27 >100,0
Gains and losses on hedging instruments 1.895 3.776 >100,0
Gains and losses on hedged items 1.864 3.749 >100,0
Gains and losses on derivatives held for purposes -86 2 >100,0
other than trading
Gains and losses on financial instruments desig- 418 460 -9,1
nated as at fair value through profit or loss
Total 363 435 -16,6
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8. 5 5 =
Premiums earned = = o ©
N = < = = ¢
— £ — £ ©
o o <= o
o~ W o~ W O —
Net premiums written 14,442 13,957 3.5
Gross premiums written 14,536 14,040 3.5
Reinsurance premiums ceded -94 -83 13.3
Change in provision for unearned premiums -24 -30 -20.0
Gross premiums -26 -29 -10.3
Reinsurers' share 2 -1 >100.0
Total 14,418 13,927 3.5
. : = .3
Gains and losses on investments = = o @
= — = ¥
held by insurance companies and other iy Il © 5
. . (=) o < o
insurance company gains and losses ~ W ~ W U =
Interest income and current income 2,575 2,587 -0.5
Administrative expenses -115 =122 =5.7
Gains and losses on valuation and disposals 478 1,809 -73.6
Other gains and losses of insurance companies 75 114 -34.2
Total 3,013 4,388 -31.3
10. ; ; N Tg
Insurance benefit payments = = o @
N — < — = ¢
— £ — £ © 4
o o = o
o~ W o~ W [ —
Expenses for claims -9,850 -9,487 3.8
Gross expenses for claims -9,890 -9,524 3.8
Reinsurers' share 40 37 8.1
Changes in benefit reserve, provisions for -4,814 -5,7717 -16.7
premium refunds and in other insurance
liabilities
Changes in gross liabilities -4,808 -5,765 -16.6
Reinsurers' share -6 -12 -50.0
Total -14,664 -15,264 -3.9
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Claims rate trend for direct non-life insurance business including
claim settlement costs

Gross claims provisions in direct business and payments made against the original provisions:

2 I o 2 - = s & s & 2
€ million ~ & & < ~ ~ ~ & & <& <
At the end of the year 3,856 3,634 3,901 3,345 3,341 3,324 2,953 2,704 2,672 2,509 2,396
1 year later -3,5233,847 3,336 3,359 3,1352,901 2,623 2,601 2,414 2,253
2 years later - - 3,769 3,247 3,279 3,160 2,763 2,527 2,531 2,306 2,170
3 years later - - -3,2203,254 3,139 2,756 2,533 2,472 2,268 2,127
4 years later - - - - 3,241 3,122 2,756 2,505 2,487 2,230 2,110
5 years later - = = = - 3,139 2,768 2,513 2,478 2,245 2,088
6 years later - = = = = - 2,710 2,469 2,434 2,214 2,085
7 years later - - - - - - -2,466 2,422 2,210 2,056
8 years later - - - - - - - - 2,426 2,2052,048
9 years later - - - - - - - - -2,207 2,042
10 years later - - - - - - - - - -2,048
Settlements - 111 132 125 100 185 243 238 246 302 348
The figures for the Condor non-life insurance companies are included from 2009.

Net claims provisions in direct business and payments made against the original provisions:

2 il o o i 2
€ million = ~ = = = =~
At the end of the year 3,827 3,574 3,669 3,313 3,298 3,254
1 year later - 3,460 3,613 3,300 3,317 3,056
2 years later - = 3,533 3,211 3,236 3,077
3 years later - = = 3,180 3,208 3,057
4 years later - - - - 3,194 2,939
5 years later - - - - - 3,049
Settlements - 114 136 133 104 205
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Claims rate trend for inward reinsurance business
Gross claims provisions in inward reinsurance business and payments made against the original provisions:
[Tal < m o~ — o (=] (e ~ el N
— = — — — — o o o o o
o o o o o o o o o o o
€ million ~ ~ ~ ~ o~ o~ ~ o~ ~ ~ ~
Gross provisions for 2,4331,976 1,710 1,506 1,409 1,190 892 712 596 524 504
claims outstanding
Cumulative payments for
the year concerned and
prior years
1 year later - 464 481 385 463 437 282 232 127 138 134
2 years later . - 685 630 640 632 399 347 203 175 179
3 years later - - - 764 345 739 468 410 250 212 208
4 years later - - - - 891 856 516 447 282 240 224
5 years later - - - - - 922 588 475 307 252 246
6 years later - - - - - - 626 528 324 266 252
7 years later - - - - - - - 555 366 283 265
8 years later - - - - - - - - 384 307 276
9 years later - - - - - - - - - 321 295
10 years later - - - - - - - - - - 305
Gross provisions for
claims outstanding and
payments made against
the original provision
At the end of the year 2,433 1,976 1,710 1,506 1,409 1,190 892 712 596 524 504
1 year later - 2,157 1,840 1,593 1,536 1,401 1,026 779 583 541 497
2 years later - - 1,859 1,569 1,472 1,343 872 765 529 480 461
3 years later - = - 1,628 1,014 1,338 826 696 518 432 420
4 years later - = = - 1,528 1,360 837 680 479 423 382
5 years later - = = = -1,396 858 691 470 396 381
6 years later - = = = = - 870 709 480 391 362
7 years later - = = = = = - 719 498 399 360
8 years later - - - - - - - - 504 403 367
9 years later - — — — — — — — - 407 368
10 years later - - - - - - - - - - 372
Settlements - -181 -149 -122 -119 -206 22 -7 92 117 132

The figures for the Condor non-life insurance companies are included from 2009.
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Net claims provisions in inward reinsurance business and payments made against the original provisions:
n < o (] — o
. = = = = o =
€ million ~ o~ ~ ~ o~ ~
Net provisions for claims 2,428 1,970 1,695 1,491 1,389 1,164
outstanding
Cumulative payments for the
year concerned and prior years
1 year later - 464 473 383 461 432
2 years later - - 677 620 636 625
3 years later - - - 754 333 729
4 years later - - - - 878 839
5 years later - - - - - 904
Net provisions for claims
outstanding and payments
made against the original
provision
At the end of the year 2,428 1,970 1,695 1,491 1,389 1,164
1 year later - 2,152 1,827 1,576 1,519 1,377
2 years later - - 1,845 1,554 1,454 1,321
3 years later - - - 1,612 997 1,314
4 years later - - - - 1,510 1,337
5 years later - - - - - 1,372
Settlements - -182 -150 -121 -121 -208
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82

11, S S E

Insurance business operating expenses = = = @

N = < = PSS

- £ - © 5

o o <= o

o~ W o~ W o —

Gross expenses -1,794 -1,786 0.4

Reinsurers' share 20 16 25.0

Total -1,774 -1,770 0.2

12. S S =

e

Administrative expenses = = > ©

N = < = = ¢

— £ — £ ©

o o <= o

o~ W o~ W O —

Staff expenses -10,160 -10,059 1.0

General and administrative expenses -6,141 -5,904 4.0

Depreciation/amortization and impairment losses -933 -932 0.1

Total -17,234 -16,895 2.0

13. S S =

o

Other net operating income/expense = = > ©

n - < - = ¢

— £ — £ o o

o o = o

o~ W o~ W O —

Gains and losses on non-current assets classified as 39 1 >100.0
held for sale and disposal groups

Other operating income 868 1,009 -14.0

Other operating expenses -1,033 -1,291 -20.0

Total -126 -281 -55.2
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VE INCOME

14. = = =
o o @ =

Income taxes = = o @
N = < = c v

— £ - © 5

o o <= o

o~ W o~ W o —

Current tax expense -2,680 -2,508 6.9
Expense on deferred taxes -140 -340 -58.8
Total -2,820 -2,848 -1.0

Current taxes in relation to the German limited companies are calculated using an effective corporation tax
rate of 15.825 percent based on a corporation tax rate of 15 percent plus the solidarity surcharge. The effec-
tive rate for trade tax is 14.0 percent based on an average trade tax multiplier of 400 percent. The tax rates

correspond to those for the previous year.

Deferred taxes must be calculated using tax rates expected to apply when the tax asset or liability arises.
The tax rates used are therefore those that are valid or have been announced for the periods in question as

at the balance sheet date.

s s "
= = = @
= < = c Y
— £ — £ © 4
o o = o
o~ W o~ W [ —
Profit before taxes 9,787 10,655 -8.1
Notional rate of income tax 29.825 29.825
of the Cooperative Financial Network (percent)
Income taxes based on notional rate of income tax -2,919 -3,178 -8.1
Tax effects 99 330 -70.0
Tax effects of tax-exempt income and 233 179 30.2
non-tax deductible expenses
Tax effects of different tax types, different trade tax 5 -1 >100.0
multipliers, and changes in tax rates
Tax effects of different tax rates in other countries 15 8 87.5
Current and deferred taxes relating to prior 56 166 -66.3
reporting periods
Reversal of valuation adjustments of deferred tax assets 17 43 -60.5
Other tax effects -227 -65 >100.0
Income taxes -2,820 -2,848 -1.0

The table shows a reconciliation from notional income taxes to recognized income taxes based on applica-

tion of the current tax law in Germany.
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D Balance sheet disclosures
n <
o o
o o .
19 =5 =5 o =
Cash and cash equivalents m = m = o @
B P =
v £ (S © 3
(<5 (<) = o
o w o w O —
Cash on hand 6,364 6,409 -0.7
Balances with central banks and other government 14,171 9,247 53.2
institutions
of which: with Deutsche Bundesbank 10,921 6,941 57.3
Public-sector debt instruments and bills of exchange 1 - -
eligible for refinancing by central banks
Total 20,536 15,656 31.2
n <
o o
o~ o .
16, -5 =0 o =
Loans and advances m = M = o o
to banks and customers U= o= s =
(5] [<5) = a
o w o w [ —
Loans and advances to banks 32,988 38,293 -13.9
Repayable on demand 17,534 17,331 1.2
Other loans and advances 15,454 20,962 -26.3
Mortgage loans and other loans secured by mortgages 19 74 -74.3
on real estate
Local authority loans 8,577 10,557 -18.8
Finance leases 100 - -
Other loans and advances 6,758 10,331 -34.6
Loans and advances to customers 700,608 670,683 4.5
Mortgage loans and other loans secured by mortgages 272,199 256,703 6.0
on real estate
Local authority loans 38,091 41,383 -8.0
Home savings loans advanced by building society 33,659 29,960 12.3
of which: from allotment (home savings loans) 3,651 4,437 -17.7
for advance and interim financing 27,905 23,377 19.4
other building loans 2,103 2,146 -2.0
Finance leases 3,575 4,118 -13.2
Other loans and advances 353,084 338,519 4.3
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9 s
2 £
- c
fo ©
© o
S w 2
17 = 0 = o & < =
. Y = o — < © o
Allowances for losses on loans and advances — 25 o ;5 —
o o E L o e T E
o — o — o
v © W o © W — W
Balance as at Jan. 1, 2014 8,103 1,181 9,284
Additions 2,271 196 2,467
Utilizations -1,132 - -1,132
Reversals -1,824 -305 -2,129
Other changes 36 -7 29
Balance as at Dec. 31, 2014 7,454 1,065 8,519
Additions 2,027 116 2,143
Utilizations -984 - -984
Reversals -1,758 -197 -1,955
Changes in the scope of consolidation -14 - -14
Other changes -86 8 -78
Balance as at Dec. 31, 2015 6,639 992 7.631
(Yol <
o o
o~ o~
18 =5 =5 "
Derivatives used for hedging m = M = o o
R .= P=
(positive and negative fair values) [CR= v e © 5
(<) (5] = o
o w o w v —
Derivatives used for hedging (positive fair values) 1,050 1,099 -4.5
for fair value hedges 1,049 1,095 -4.2
for cash flow hedges 1 4 -75.0
Derivatives used for hedging (negative fair values) 9,453 10,423 -9.3
for fair value hedges 9,442 10,395 -9.2
for cash flow hedges 10 27 -63.0

for hedges of net investments in foreign operations

1
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[Tel <

o o

o o~
o o -
9. . = & = ° @ =
Financial assets held for trading m = omn = o o
o E G E s =

(5] [«5) =

o w o w U\.Q:
Derivatives (positive fair values) 24,665 31,884 -22.6
Interest-linked contracts 22,221 28,301 -21.5
Currency-linked contracts 1,253 2,104 -40.4
Share- and index-linked contracts 320 426 -24.9
Credit derivatives 287 400 -28.3
Other contracts 584 653 -10.6
Securities 14,424 17,182 -16.1
Bonds and other fixed-income securities 13,387 16,433 -18.5
Shares and other variable-yield securities 1,037 749 38.5
Loans and advances 14,117 11,744 20.2
Inventories and trade receivables 364 371 -1.9
Total 53,570 61,181 -12.4

[Tal <

o o

o~ o
20. -5 -5 .z
Investments m = m = o v
S R = Y
[CRN= (SR © 5
(<5 (<5 = o
o w o w v —
Securities 246,591 245,949 0.
Bonds and other fixed-income securities 193,932 197,228 -1.7
Shares and other variable-yield securities 52,659 48,721 8.1
Investments in subsidiaries 1,315 1,106 18.9
Equity investments 2,054 2,164 =5.1
Investments in joint ventures 548 597 -8.2
Investments in associates 413 391 5.6
Other shareholdings 1,093 1,176 -7.1
Total 249,960 249,219 0.3
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N <
= o
o~ o~
2. =5 = o =
Investments held by insurance m = m = o @
. e— . e— o
companies = o s 5 =
(o Ll = o
o w o w v —
Investment property 2,251 1,924 17.0
Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures 527 504 4.6
and in associates
Mortgage loans 8,732 8,047 8.5
Promissory notes and loans 8,001 8,043 -0.5
Registered bonds 9,438 9,376 0.7
Other loans 837 898 -6.8
Variable-yield securities 7,288 6,248 16.6
Fixed-income securities 36,598 34,457 6.2
Derivatives (positive fair values) 233 443 -47.4
Deposits with ceding insurers 163 172 -5.2
Assets related to unit-linked contracts 8,698 7,433 17.0
Total 82,766 77,545 6.7
n <
22. o o
o~ o~
Property, plant and equipment, -5 - S =
and investment property m = m = o @
o E = c =
(5] (<5 =
o w o w U&
Land and buildings 6,839 6,752 1.3
Office furniture and equipment 1,408 1,451 -3.0
Assets subject to operating leases 460 1,200 -61.7
Investment property 264 93 >100.0
Other fixed assets 2,197 1,933 13.7
Total 11,168 11,429 -2.3
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[Tel <t
o o
o o .
23 = =5 L2
Income tax assets and liabilities m = m = o o
o E o E s =
(5] (5] =
o w o w u&
Income tax assets 3,772 4,484 -15.9
Current income tax assets 1,620 1,973 — 15759
Deferred tax assets 2,152 2,511 -14.3
Income tax liabilities 1,263 1,198 5.4
Current income tax liabilities 899 816 10.2
Deferred tax liabilities 364 382 -4.7
[Ta} < " N wv <t
— — L — v —
o o - o - o
v N wv N = o = o~
355 355 3TE-o5 3Eo8
= @ M= = @ M= =M= =M=
o © o =2 o © o = o — 9 = o — o 5=
— e Y = — e Y f= — e Y = — e Y =
(<5 © (<5 (<5 © (<5 (<) © (<) [} © [}
o - 0O w 0O - 0O w 0O - 0O w o - 0O w
Tax loss carryforwards 35 89
Loans and advances to banks and customers 91 35 520 719
(net)
Financial assets and liabilities held for 1,199 1,518 28 37
trading, derivatives used for hedging
(positive and negative fair values)
Investments 360 383 1,080 1,360
Investments held by insurance companies 26 13 449 589
Deposits from banks and customers 796 1,079 160 83
Debt certificates including bonds 111 157 14 22
Provisions 1,737 1,966 43 37
Insurance liabilities 118 129 287 246
Intangible assets - 1 29 29
Other balance sheet items 132 126 207 245
Total (gross) 4,605 5,496 2,817 3,367
Netting of deferred tax assets -2,453 -2,985 -2,453 -2,985
and deferred tax liabilities
Total (net) 2,152 2,511 364 382

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences in respect of the balance sheet
items shown in the table as well as for tax loss carryforwards.
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n <
= =
o~ o~
24. -5 -5 =
— — =
Other assets m = m = > @
e P = v
o £ v e © 5
(o (&) = o
o w [N o —
Other assets held by insurance companies 3,182 3,790 -16.0
Goodwill 59 121 -51.2
Other intangible assets 350 272 28.7
Prepaid expenses 202 211 -4.3
Other receivables 2,803 2,791 0.4
Non-current assets and disposal groups 198 33 >100.0
classified as held for sale
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfolio 6,512 7,008 -7.1
hedges of interest-rate risk
Residual other assets 426 464 -8.2
Total 13,732 14,690 -6.5
The breakdown of other assets held by insurance companies is as follows:
n <
= =
o~ o~
ey e -
= ° = ° w =
[o s m = o @
. = P c v
v £ v £ © 3
(< [ = o
o w o w o —
Intangible assets 155 163 -4.9
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 208 254 -18.1
Provision for unearned premiums 8 6 33.3
Benefit reserves 65 71 -8.5
Provisions for claims outstanding 135 177 -23.7
Receivables 661 876 -24.5
Receivables arising out of direct insurance operations 419 529 -20.8
Receivables arising out of reinsurance operations 182 291 -37.5
Other receivables 60 56 7.1
Credit balances with banks, checks and cash on 241 337 -28.5
hand
Residual other assets 1,917 2,160 -11.3
Property, plant and equipment 437 456 -4.2
Prepaid expenses 34 31 9.7
Remaining assets held by insurance companies 1,446 1,673 -13.6
Total 3,182 3,790 -16.0
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[Tal <

o o
25. - S - S =
Deposits from banks and customers m = om = &8

o e v E ® 5

o w o w U&
Deposits from banks 99,505 103,526 -3.9
Repayable on demand 7,223 10,349 -30.2
With agreed maturity or notice period 92,282 93,177 -1.0
Deposits from customers 739,218 713,485 .6
Savings deposits and home savings deposits 238,345 237,205 0.5
Savings deposits with agreed notice period of three 172,203 169,869 1.4
months
Savings deposits with agreed notice period of more than 15,216 18,993 -19.9
three months
Home savings deposits 50,926 48,343 5.3
Other deposits from customers 500,873 476,280 5.2
Repayable on demand 379,985 339,360 12.0
With agreed maturity or notice period 120,888 136,920 -11.7

N <

= =

o~ o~
26. . = = =
Debt certificates issued including bonds m = m = ;’,8

o e S g ° 5

o w w o =
Bonds issued 48,489 51,803 -6.4
Mortgage Pfandbriefe 26,385 22,0438 19.7
Public-sector Pfandbriefe 8,383 11,023 -23.9
Other bonds 13,721 18,732 -26.8
Other debt certificates issued 21,759 15,178 43.4
Total 70,248 66,981 4.9
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N <t
o o
o o~ .
e =5 =5 o =
Financial liabilities held trading m = m = o v
. = .= = v
o E o E s
o w [N U&
Derivatives (negative fair values) 27,822 32,190 -13.6
Interest-linked contracts 22,328 27,332 -18.3
Currency-linked contracts 1,259 1,733 -27.4
Share- and index-linked contracts 799 762 4.9
Credit derivatives 166 210 -21.0
Other contracts 3,270 2,153 51.9
Short positions 849 883 -3.9
Bonds issued and other debt certificates 10,815 9,817 10.2
Liabilities 5,867 9,827 -40.3
Liabilities from commodities transactions and 44 43 2.3
commodity lending
Total 45,397 52,760 -14.0
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[Tal <
o =
o~ o~
28. . < < —~
— — [
Provisions m = m = > o
= 0 = = ¥
o £ v e © 5
(ol () = o
o w o w o —
Provisions for defined benefit plans 8,186 9,088 -9.9
Provisions for loans and advances 418 432 -3.2
Provisions relating to building society operations 653 580 12.6
Residual provisions 3,306 3,561 -7.2
Total 12,563 13,661 -8.0
[Tal <
= =
o~ o~
- = - S =
- 9 — 9 v <
m = m = @8
Funding status of defined = SR= i;
. . . (<5 (<) = o
benefit obligations o w o w U =
Present value of defined benefit obligations 7,684 8,558 -10.2
not funded by plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligations 1,703 1,745 -2.4
funded by plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligations 9,387 10,303 -8.9
less fair value of plan assets -1,201 -1,215 -1.2
Defined benefit obligations (net) 8,186 9,088 -9.9
Provisions for defined benefit plans 8,186 9,088 -9.9
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= = -
o o w =
i p— o O
p— —_ o
Changes in the present value of the = & Iz z;
o o L=
defined benefit obligations ~N W ~N W o2
Present value of defined benefit obligations 10,303 8,159 26.3
as at Jan. 1
Current service cost 149 113 31.9
Interest expense 206 261 -21.1
Pension benefits paid including plan settlements -374 -345 8.4
Past service cost -9 = =
Actuarial gains (=)/losses (+) -911 2,100 >100.0
Other changes 23 15 53.3
Present value of defined benefit obligations 9,387 10,303 -8.9
as at Dec. 31
= = :
9 9 L =
= = = @
N = < = c v
S E S E <
Changes in plan assets ~ W N w o2
Fair value of plan assets as at Jan. 1 1,215 1,145 6.1
Interest income 24 34 -29.4
Contributions to plan assets 26 22 18.2
Pension benefits paid -56 -47 19.1
Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) -21 52 >100.0
Other changes 13 9 44 .4
Fair value of plan assets as at Dec. 31 1,201 1,215 -1.2
n <
= o
NA o~ .
= c — =
[aa N <F] m @
Actuarial assumptions used for :j; ;JJ;
defined benefit obligations o Z a2
Weighted discount rate 2.24 1.99
Weighted salary increase 1.89 2.05
Weighted pension increase 1.76 1.90
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[Te) <
o o
o o
29. . < < =
— — [
Insurance liabilities m = m = > o
. = P— = Y
v £ v e © 5
(<5 (5] = o
o w o w o —
Provision for unearned premiums 1,104 1,071 3.1
Benefit reserve 52,634 49,724 5.9
Provision for claims outstanding 9,257 8,352 10.8
Provision for premium refunds 7,923 8,568 -7.5
Other insurance liabilities 53 40 32.5
Reserve for unit-linked insurance contracts 7,958 6,915 15.1
Total 78,929 74,670 5.7
LN <
o o
o~ o .
30. = S = S o=
Other liabilities m = m = o ©
.= o= e Y
o E Sk s
o w o w o 3
Other liabilities of insurance companies 4,255 4,203 1.
Other liabilities and accruals 2,256 2,382 -5.3
Liabilities included in disposal groups 7 - -
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfolio 479 567 -15.5
hedges of interest-rate risk
Residual other liabilities 572 667 -14.2
Total 7,569 7,819 -3.2
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The breakdown of other liabilities held by insurance companies is as follows:

(Yol <

= o

o~ o
= = -
_ o _ o o =
m = m = o @
— —— c Y
= @ {5 © o
(ol (<) = o
o w o w o —
Residual provisions 327 366 -10.7
Provisions for employee benefits 297 324 -8.3
Provisions for share-based payment transactions 1 1 -
Other provisions 29 41 =293
Payables and residual other liabilities 3,928 3,837 2.4
Subordinated capital 73 38 92.1
Deposits received from reinsurers 78 90 -13.3
Payables arising out of direct insurance operations 1,574 1,687 -6.7
Payables arising out of reinsurance operations 230 268 -14.2
Debt certificates including bonds 29 28 3.6
Deposits from banks 524 447 17.2
Derivatives (negative fair values) 70 64 9.4
Liabilities from capitalization transactions 775 595 30.3
Other payables 198 184 7.6
Residual other liabilities 377 436 -13.5
Total 4,255 4,203 1.2

[Tal <

o o

o o~
= = -
e . =5 = s =
Subordinated capital m = m = o @
S E = 55
(ol (<) = o
o w o w O —
Subordinated liabilities 4,851 4,518 7.4
Profit-sharing rights 494 196 >100.0
Share capital repayable on demand 22 22 -
Total 5,367 4,736 13.3
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E Financial struments
disclosures
o o S < <
£ o o € o o
© ~ o N T o~ o N
32. o5 -5 °o-5 25
Fair value of financial ';‘“E ) = EME ) =
instruments ::j"é _::"g ::E ':ZIE
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14,172 14,172 9,247 9,247
Loans and advances to banks' 32,935 34,931 38,185 39,572
Loans and advances to customers' 693,030 699,519 662,272 669,424
Derivatives used for hedging 1,050 1,050 1,099 1,099
(positive fair values)
Financial assets held for trading? 53,206 53,206 60,810 60,810
Investments? 248,999 249,204 248,231 248,496
Investments held by insurance 71,614 72,688 67,977 69,311
companies??
Other assets? 9,645 9,074 10,192 9,342
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 99,505 101,724 103,526 105,070
Deposits from customers 739,218 743,352 713,485 718,568
Debt certificates including bonds 70,2438 70,955 66,981 68,232
Derivatives used for hedging 9,453 9,453 10,423 10,423
(negative fair values)
Financial liabilities held for trading? 45,353 45,353 52,717 52,717
Other liabilities? 2,882 2,408 3,122 2,561
Subordinated capital 5,367 5,633 4,736 5,035

1 Carrying amounts less loan loss allowances

2 Fair values and carrying amounts are only disclosed for financial instruments

3 Excluding investment in joint ventures and in associates

The table shows the disclosures on the fair value of financial instruments included in the published annual
reports of the DZ BANK Group and the WGZ BANK Group. For all other companies included in the consolidat-
ed financial statements, the fair value was deemed to be equivalent to the carrying amount.
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©

(5]

>

@ T

= (%)
33, == << < =

o
Maturity analysis s = o = S = = =
= = T e = =
Balance as at Dec. 31, 2015 VI w A w AN W S w
Loans and advances to banks 14,574 3,296 20,617 413
Loans and advances to customers 39,645 56,021 602,025 19,987
Deposits from banks 30,207 8,867 62,828 349
Deposits from customers 589,240 27,995 76,732 51,192
Debt certificates including bonds 15,462 11,187 45,960 -

Balance as at Dec. 31, 2014

Loans and advances to banks 15,609 4,416 24,356 564
Loans and advances to customers 38,319 55,690 574,018 21,067
Deposits from banks 30,541 10,056 65,992 4438
Deposits from customers 548,880 32,532 84,651 53,315
Debt certificates issued including bonds 12,103 12,099 45,285 -

The contractual maturities shown in the table do not match the estimated actual cash inflows and cash out-

flows.
(Yol <
o o
o o~
o =S =8 -
Exposures in countries particularly m = m = o v
= .= P=
affected by the sovereign debt crisis [CR= o= © 5
(5] (] = a
o w o w o —
Portugal 827 725 14.1
Italy 7,795 8,182 -4.7
Ireland 747 563 32.7
Greece 1 1 -
Spain 4,279 4,451 -3.9
Total 13,649 13,922 -2.0

The table shows the carrying amounts of debt related to national governments and other public authorities
particularly affected by the sovereign debt crisis.

Debt held as part of the insurance business is only recognized in the proportion attributable to the share-
holders of the Cooperative Financial Network.
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F Other disclosures
(Yol <
= o
o o~
= < -
30 , = & = & w =
Capital requirements and regulatory m = m = o @
J— . = =
indicators (SR o £ © 5
(ol (<) = o
o w o w (S
Total capital 87,628 81,565 7.4
Tier 1 capital 69,174 62,092 11.4
of which: Common Equity Tier 1 capital 68,233 60,838 12.2
Additional Tier 1 capital 941 1,254 -25.0
Tier 2 capital 18,454 19,473 -5.2
Total risk exposure 555,952 541,435 2.7
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio (percent) 12.3 11.2
Tier 1 capital ratio (percent) 12.4 11.5
Total capital ratio (percent) 15.8 15.1
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 14.6 13.6
incl. reserves pursuant to Section 340f HGB
(for information, percent)’
Tier 1 capital ratio incl. reserves pursuant to 14.8 13.8
Section 340f HGB (for information, percent)’
Leverage ratio (for information, percent)? 6.0 not
determined
Leverage ratio incl. reserves pursuant to Section 6.9 not

340f HGB (for information, percent)?

determined

1 The balance of reserves pursuant to Section 340f HGB is based on the financial statements data reported for regulatory

purposes before additions and reversals within the scope of the 2015 and 2014 financial statements.

N~

capital.

w

Disclosure of ratio after full introduction of the new CRR provisions (fully loaded),

Disclosure of the leverage ratio of the bank-specific protection system using the transitional definition for Tier 1

subject to the assumption of full

reclassification and inclusion of allowances pursuant to Section 340f HGB as Tier 1 capital from a business point of

view.

The disclosures refer to the bank-specific protection system (Cooperative Financial Network) and the rel-
evant reporting date. The disclosures in relation to own funds and capital requirements are based on the
results of the extended aggregated calculation in accordance with Art. 49 (3) CRR in conjunction with Art.

113 (7) CRR.

As at December 31, 2015, the leverage ratio of the bank-specific protection system of the Cooperative Fi-
nancial Network is disclosed for the first time through corresponding application of the requirements set
out in Art. 429 CRR. Tier 1 capital was used as the capital measure pursuant to the extended aggregated
calculation in accordance with Art. 49 (3) CRR, adjusted by any Tier 1 capital items of the members of the
bank-specific protection system held internally within the Cooperative Financial Network. The exposure
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values were determined by aggregating the individual figures reported for the leverage ratio of all member
institutions and adjusted by material items held internally within the Cooperative Financial Network. The
underlying report forms as at December 31, 2015 are based on the Commission Implementing Regulation
(EU) No. 680/2014, which does not reflect the amendments introduced by the Delegated Regulation (EU) No.
2015/62 dated October 10, 2014.

The primary banks and MHB are included on an individual basis using the respective reports. The central
institutions are included using their reports on a consolidated basis.

In accordance with Art. 429 (4) second subparagraph CRR, the reports taken into account for the DZ BANK
Group also comprise, as at December 31, 2015, the exposure values from Group companies that were consoli-
dated in financial reporting, but not for regulatory purposes. For reasons of consistency, an adjustment was
made for material exposure values that are not attributable to the regulatory scope of consolidation since
the corresponding Tier 1 capital of those Group companies are not reflected in the extended aggregated
calculation.

[Tol <t

o o

o~ o~
20 -5 RS .
Financial guarantee contracts and loan m = om = o @

L= - = = ¥
commitments v £ v £ ©

(5] [«5) = a

o w o w o —
Financial guarantee contracts 18,024 17,020 5.9
Loan commitments 65,965 59,477 10.9
Total 83,989 76,497 9.8

The amounts shown for financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments are the nominal values of the
respective exposure.

[Tel <

o o

o o .
37. =5 =5 =
Trust activities m = m = o o

= SR c 5

(<5 (5} = o

o w o w o —
Trust assets 2,692 2,169 24 .1
of which: trust loans 1,679 1,127 49.0
Trust liabilities 2,692 2,169 24 .1
of which: trust loans 1,679 1,127 49.0
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38. =& =G =
Asset management by m = m = o
S — [
the Union Investment Group v g v £ © 3
[l () = o
o w o w O —
Fund assets 230,685 205,061 12.5
Other types of asset management 40,714 35,132 15.9
Unit-linked asset management 696 500 39.2
Institutional asset management 10,342 8,401 23.1
Advisory and outsourcing 29,676 26,231 13.1
Accounts managed by third parties -10,597 -8,136 30.2
Total 260,802 232,057 12.4

As at the balance sheet date, the Union Investment Group (through Union Asset Management Holding) had
total assets under management of €260,802 million (December 31, 2014: €232,057 million). The fund assets
comprise equity funds, fixed-income funds, money market funds, mixed funds, other securities funds, cap-
ital preservation funds, real estate funds, alternative investment funds and hybrid funds issued by Union

Investment Group.

In addition, Union Investment Group has assets under management within the scope of institutional asset
management, unit-linked asset management, and advisory and outsourcing. The fund volume of funds that
have been issued by Union Investment Group but whose portfolio management has been outsourced is
shown as a deduction. The definition of assets under management is based on the aggregate statistics from
the Federal Association of German Fund Management Companies (BVI), Frankfurt/Main.
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39. ) <
Leases I I
- < = = =
— 2 — ° =
Finance leases with the Cooperative m = m = o o
A A =
Financial Network as lessor o £ o £ ©
(o (&) = o
o w o w o —
Gross investment 4,025 4,628 -13.0
Up to 1 year 1,188 1,336 — N
More than 1 year and up to 5 years 2,337 2,655 -12.0
More than 5 years 500 637 -21.5
less unearned finance income -397 -540 -26.5
Net investment 3,628 4,088 -11.3
less present value of unguaranteed residual values -90 -94 -4.3
Present value of minimum lease payment receivables 3,538 3,994 -11.4
Up to 1 year 1,038 1,146 -9.4
More than 1 year and up to 5 years 2,071 2,304 -10.1
More than 5 years 429 544 -21.1

As at the balance sheet date, the accumulated allowance for uncollectable minimum lease payments at lessor
companies amounted to €41 million (December 31, 2014: €63 million).

The DVB Bank Group and the VR Leasing Group are active as finance lessors in the Cooperative Financial Net-
work. The entities in the DVB Bank Group primarily enter into leases for ships, ship containers, aircraft, and
aircraft engines. Entities in the VR Leasing Group mainly enter into equipment leases with their customers.
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50
51
52
54
56

= £ Pt £ P =
40 . s 5 © w 5 « o «
v O [T =) o (=] V) o
Changes in the = == - IS = =
contract port- 5 S ® S o ° @ = S ° s S
folios held by =9 = s = = _s  _ .=
Bausparkasse ~ E - E g o E o E g IC= S ETE
B i o = o o = = - o o > o ©
Schwdabisch Hall = = =z T w < = < T w - = - T w
Balance as at 7,430,011 249,946 906,514 24,343 8,336,525 274,289
Dec. 31, 2014
Additions in 2015
as a result of
New contracts (redeemed 830,965 31,610 - - 830,965 31,610
contracts)’
Transfers 24,911 689 1,210 30 26,121 719
Allocation waivers and 9,814 416 - - 9,814 416
cancellations
Splitting 223,194 - 111 - 223,305 -
Allocations and accept- - - 393,333 10,128 393,333 10,128
ance of allocations
Other 110,267 3,623 34 2 110,301 3,625
Total 1,199,151 36,338 394,688 10,160 1,593,839 46,498
Disposals in 2015
as a result of
Allocations and acceptance -393,333 -10,128 - - -393,333 -10,128
of allocations
Reductions - -859 - - - -859
Termination -302,177 -7,216 -288,303 -6,964 -590,480 -14,180
Transfers -24,911 -689 -1,210 -30 -26,121 -719
Pooling' -93,875 - -3 — -93,878 -
Expiration - - =174,032 -4,716 -174,032 -4,716
Allocation waivers and - - -9,814 -416 -9,814 -416
cancellations
Other -110,267 -3,623 -34 -2 -110,301 -3,625
Total -924,563 -22,515 -473,396 -12,128 -1,397,959 -34,643
Net addition/disposal 274,588 13,823 -78,708 -1,968 195,880 11,855
Balance as at 7,704,599 263,769 827,806 22,375 8,532,405 286,144
Dec. 31, 2015
1 Including increases s 2 =
= o o
Y © (=)} =
o v = —
EC EZT e e
= @ © © oS
Volume of unredeemed contracts Z O T owoaw
Contracts signed prior to Jan. 1, 2015 62,694 2,479
Contracts signed in 2015 267,799 12,147
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41 .
Changes in the allocation assets of
Bausparkasse Schwdabisch Hall S
<€
o~ W
Additions
Amounts carried forward from 2014 (surplus)
Amounts not yet disbursed 45,215
Additions in 2015
Savings deposits (including credited residential construction bonuses) 8,928
Repayable amounts (including credited residential construction bonuses)' 1,920
Interest on home savings deposits 706
Total 56,769
Withdrawals
Withdrawals in 2015
Amounts allocated (if disbursed)
Home savings deposits 5,729
Building loans 1,109
Repayment of deposits on non-allocated home savings contracts 1,148
Surplus of additions
(Amounts not yet disbursed) at the end of 2015? 48,783
Total 56,769
1 Amounts repaid are the portion of the loan principal actually repaid.
2 The surplus amounts allocated include:
a undisbursed home savings deposits from allocated home savings contracts €115 million

b undisbursed home savings loans from funds allocated

€4,220 million
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o o o
(3] (3] @ e . =
© © © 2 = =
= = = c c c
o) o) o0 © @© ©
= = ES o e o
[ [ = a- o o
© W0 o = © L e -
42 o o o o e s s &
C : f o = o = @ = 5 o = ; o = 5 =
over statement for >_ 5 5 o= v -0 a0 P
the mortgages and local o™ = o ™M = o o @ S = S = $ oo
— R — — — - — = . — - <
authority loans extended SYVE S VYE S ®©g ©2UVUE ©oUVUE ocg
@ (3] = o 5 @ S @ = = o
by the mortgage banks Sow Eow =0l aoaow aow aul
Ordinary cover 47,484 44,730 6.2 31,131 36,243 -14 .1
Loans and advances to banks 37 24 54.2 1,048 2,261 -53.6
of which: Mortgage loans 37 24 54.2 - = =
Local authority loans - = = 1,048 2,261 -53.6
Loans and advances to customers 47,300 44,560 6.1 22,945 24,939 -8.0
of which: Mortgage loans 47,300 44,560 6.1 84 97 -13.4
Local authority loans - - - 22,861 24,842 -8.0
Investments consisting of bonds and - - - 4,839 6,613 -26.8
other fixed-income securities
Property, plant and equipment 147 146 0.7 2,299 2,430 -5.4
Extended cover 2,353 1,726 36.3 507 348 45.7
Loans and advances to banks 150 - - 358 187 91.4
Investments consisting of bonds and 2,203 1,726 27.6 149 161 -7.5
other fixed-income securities
Total cover 49,837 46,456 7.3 31,638 36,591 -13.5
Pfandbriefe requiring cover -44,558 -39,794 12.0 -28,250 -32,583 -13.3
Nominal excess cover 5,279 6,662 -20.8 3,388 4,008 -15.5
Present value of excess cover 8,839 9,380 -5.8 4,316 4,954 -12.9
Risk-related present value of 7,016 8,482 -17.3 3,628 4,391 -17.4

excess cover

The present value of excess cover is higher than the nominal excess cover because it includes an interest

component.



EDITORIAL

MANAGEMENT REPOR

2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015

5 NCOME STATEMEN
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
49 BALANCE SHEET

REVIEW REPORT (TRANSLATION) 109  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 54
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOV 56
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 59
105
2 3
~ ~
-5 =5 .2
Maturity structure of m = m = o @
mortgage Pfandbriefe and ::'E «;J'E Eo;
public—sector Pfandbriefe issue o w o w o £
Mortgage Pfandbriefe 44,558 39,794 12.0
< 6 months 4,560 2,868 59.0
> 6 months and < 12 months 1,305 2,396 —-45.5
> 12 months and < 18 months 1,664 4,664 -64.3
> 18 months and < 2 years 1,886 1,450 30.1
> 2 years and < 3 years 2,773 3,522 =21.3
> 3 years and < 4 years 3,671 2,274 61.4
> 4 years and < 5 years 3,555 3,193 11.3
> 5 years and < 10 years 13,818 11,947 15.7
> 10 years 11,326 7,480 51.4
Public-sector Pfandbriefe 28,250 32,583 -13.3
< 6 months 1,722 2,267 -24.0
> 6 months and < 12 months 3,479 1,996 74.3
> 12 months and < 18 months 1,900 1,758 8.1
> 18 months and < 2 years 1,129 3,578 -68.4
> 2 years and < 3 years 2,666 3,151 -15.4
> 3 years and < 4 years 2,129 2,732 -22.1
> 4 years and < 5 years 2,270 2,271 0.0
> 5 years and < 10 years 5,910 6,837 -13.6
> 10 years 7,045 7,993 -11.9
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2 3

~ ~
Fixed-interest periods - S - S =
of cover assets ;E :\E o @

g E g E z3

o w o w O —
Mortgage Pfandbriefe 49,837 46,456 7.3
< 6 months 2,969 3,264 —9.0
> 6 months and < 12 months 2,540 2,942 -13.7
> 12 months and < 18 months 2,203 2,306 -4.5
> 18 months and < 2 years 2,725 2,707 0.7
> 2 years and < 3 years 4,909 4,999 -1.8
> 3 years and < 4 years 4,497 4,706 -4.4
> 4 years and < 5 years 4,630 4,342 6.6
> 5 years and < 10 years 17,525 15,661 11.9
> 10 years 7,839 5,529 41.8
Public-sector Pfandbriefe 31,638 36,591 -13.5
< 6 months 1,693 2,300 -26.4
> 6 months and < 12 months 2,175 2,599 -16.3
> 12 months and < 18 months 1,523 1,687 =91/
> 18 months and < 2 years 2,181 2,461 -11.4
> 2 years and < 3 years 2,115 3,989 -47.0
> 3 years and < 4 years 2,008 2,229 -9.9
> 4 years and < 5 years 1,717 1,883 -8.8
> 5 years and < 10 years 6,530 7,665 -14.8
> 10 years 11,696 11,778 -0.7

150 properties were in forced administration at the balance sheet date (December 31, 2014: 213). The mort-
gage loans held as cover include past-due payments for interests to be paid in the amount of 1 million
(December 31, 2014: €1 million).



EDITORIAL

MANAGEMENT REPORT 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015
N REPORT (TRANSLATION)

107/

43.

Board of Managing Directors
German

National Association of

Uwe Frohlich (President)
Gerhard P. Hofmann
Dr. Andreas Martin

Berlin, July 01, 2016

49

109

of

NCOME STATEMENT
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BALANCE SHEET

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
the
Cooperative Banks (BVR)

National Association of German Cooperative Banks (BVR)

BVR

Board of Managing Directors

Uwe Fréhlich Gerhard P. Hofmann

Dr. Andreas Martin






5 REVIEW REPORT (TRANS
\GEMENT REPORT 2015 7
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015 49
REVIEW REPORT (TRANSLATION) 109

109

Review Report (Translation)

AT

ON)



EDITORIAL 5
ANAGEMENT REPORT 2015
CONSOLIDATED FINANC

REVIEW REPORT (TRANSLATION) 109

L STATEMENTS 2015 49

110

Review Report (Translation)
To the National Association of German
Cooperative Banks (BVR)

We have reviewed the consolidated financial state-
ments of the Volksbanken Raiffeisenbanken Coop-
erative Financial Network that were prepared by
the Bundesverband der Deutschen Volksbanken und
Raiffeisenbanken e.V. (BVR) [National Association
of German Cooperative Banks], Berlin — consisting
of the income statement, the statement of compre-
hensive income, the balance sheet, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cashflows and
the notes - for the period from January 1 to Decem-
ber 31, 2015.

The Board of Managing Directors of BVR is respon-
sible for preparing the consolidated financial state-
ments of the Volksbanken Raiffeisenbanken Coop-
erative Financial Network in accordance with the
significant financial reporting principles presented
in section A of the notes to the consolidated finan-
cial statements. Our responsibility is to issue a re-
view report on the annual consolidated financial
statements of the Volksbanken Raiffeisenbanken
Cooperative Financial Network based on our review.

We conducted our review of the consolidated finan-
cial statements of the Volksbanken Raiffeisenbank-
en Cooperative Financial Network in accordance
with German generally accepted standards for the
review of financial statements promulgated by the
Institut der Wirtschaftsprtufer (IDW) [Institute of
Public Auditors in Germany]. Those standards re-
quire that we plan and perform our review such that,
having conducted a critical assessment, we can with
reasonable certainty exclude the possibility that the
consolidated financial statements of the Volksbank-
en Raiffeisenbanken Cooperative Financial Network
have not been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the significant financial reporting
principles presented in section A of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. A review is essen-
tially restricted to interviews of employees and to
analytical assessments and therefore does not offer
the degree of certainty provided by an audit. As we
did not conduct an audit under the terms of our en-
gagement, we cannot issue an audit opinion.

Our review did not reveal any findings that might
lead us to conclude that the annual consolidated

REVIEW REPORT (TRANSLATION) 109

financial statements of the Volksbanken Raiffei-
senbanken Cooperative Financial Network have not
been prepared, in all material respects, in accord-
ance with the significant financial reporting princi-
ples presented in section A of the notes to the con-
solidated financial statements.

Without qualifying our conclusion, we refer to sec-
tion A of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, in which the significant financial re-
porting principles are described. The consolidated
financial statements of the Volksbanken Raiffeisen-
banken Cooperative Financial Network have been
prepared solely for informational purposes and to
present the business development and performance
of the Cooperative Financial Network, which is treat-
ed as a single economic entity in terms of its risks
and strategies. These consolidated financial state-
ments are not a substitute for analysis of the consol-
idated entities' financial statements. Consequently,
the annual consolidated financial statements of the
Volksbanken Raiffeisenbanken Cooperative Finan-
cial Network may not be suitable for other purposes.

Our report is destined only for BVR. We do not as-
sume any responsibility or liability vis-a-vis third par-
ties.

The engagement, in performance of which we pro-
vided the aforementioned services for BVR, was
based on the General Terms and Conditions of En-
gagement for public Auditors and public Auditing
Firms in the version dated January 1, 2002. By ac-
knowledging and using the information contained
in this review report, each recipient confirms ac-
knowledgement of the provisions in those Terms
and Conditions (including the liability provisions in
no. 9 of those Terms and Conditions) and accepts
that they apply in the relationship with us.

Eschborn / Frankfurt/Main, July 1, 2016

Ernst & Young GmbH
Wirtschaftsprafungsgesellschaft

Wagner (German public auditor)
Miller (German public auditor)
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Gains and losses on trading activities, gains and losses on investments, other gains and losses on valuation

of financial instruments

Premiums earned, gains and losses on investments held by insurance companies, other insurance company gains

and losses, insurance benefit payments, insurance business operating expenses

Total assets including financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments, trust activities, and assets under

management in the Union Investment Group
Ratio of net profit to average equity
Ratio of net profit to total assets








